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Rea & Associates, Inc.

ACCOUNTANTS ANLD BUSINESS CONSULTANTS
' July 6, 2005

Summit County Council
Summit County, OH 44308

INDEPENDENT AUDITOR'S REPORT ON INTERNAL CONTROL OVER FINANCIAL REPORTING
AND ON COMPLIANCE AND OTHER MATTERS BASED ON AN AUDIT
OF FINANCIAL STATEMENTS PERFORMED IN ACCORDANCE WITH
GOVERNMENT AUDITING STANDARDS

We have audited the financial statements of the governmental activities, the business-type activities, the
aggregate discretely presented component unit, each major fund, and the aggregate remaining fund information
of the County of Summit (the “County”) as of and for the year ended December 31, 2004, which collectively
comprise the County’s basic financial statements and have issued our report thereon dated July 6, 2005. We
conducted our audit in accordance with auditing standards generally accepted in the United States of America
and the standards applicable to financial audits contained in Government Auditing Standards, issued by the
Comptroller General of the United States.

Internal Control Over Financial Reporting

In planning and performing our audit, we considered the County's internal control over financial reporting in
order to determine our auditing procedures for the purpose of expressing our opinions on the financial statements
and not to provide assurance on the internal control over financial reporting. Our consideration of the internal
control over financial reporting would not necessarily disclose all matters in the internal control over financial
reporting that might be material weaknesses. A material weakness is a reportable condition in which the design
or operation of one or more of the internal control components does not reduce to a relatively low level the risk
that misstatements caused by error or fraud in amounts that would be material in relation to the financial
statements being audited may occur and not be detected within a timely period by employees in the normal
course of performing their assigned functions. We noted no matters involving the internal control over financial
reporting and its operation that we consider to be material weaknesses. However, we noted other matters
involving the internal control over financial reporting that we have reported to management of the County in a
separate |etter dated July 6, 2005.

Compliance and Other Matters

As part of obtaining reasonable assurance about whether the County's financial statements are free of material
misstatement, we performed tests of its compliance with certain provisions of laws, regulations, contracts and
grant agreements, noncompliance with which could have a direct and material effect on the determination of
financial statement amounts. However, providing an opinion on compliance with those provisions was not an
objective of our audit and, accordingly, we do not express such an opinion. The results of our tests disclosed no
instances of noncompliance or other matters that are required to be reported under Government Auditing
Sandards. However, we noted certain immaterial instances of noncompliance that we have reported to
management of the County in a separate |etter dated July 6, 2005.

This report is intended solely for the information and use of the audit committee, management, federal awarding
agencies, pass-through entities, and County Council and is not intended to be and should not be used by anyone
other than those specified parties.
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Rea & Associates, Inc.

ACCOUNTANTS AND BUSINESS CONSULTANTS

July 6, 2005

Summit County Council
Summit County, OH 44308

INDEPENDENT AUDITOR'S REPORT ON COMPLIANCE WITH REQUIREMENTS
APPLICABLE TO EACH MAJOR PROGRAM AND INTERNAL CONTROL OVER
COMPLIANCE IN ACCORDANCE WITH OMB CIRCULAR A-133

Compliance
We have audited the compliance of the County of Summit (the “County”) with the types of compliance

requirements described in the U.S. Office of Management and Budget (OMB) Circular A-133, Compliance
Supplement that are applicable to each of its major federal programs for the year ended December 31, 2004. The
County's major federal programs are identified in the summary of auditor’s results section of the accompanying
schedule of findings and questioned costs. Compliance with the requirements of laws, regulations, contracts and
grants applicable to each of its major federal programs is the responsibility of the County’s management. Our
responsibility is to express an opinion on the County’ s compliance based on our audit.

We conducted our audit of compliance in accordance with auditing standards generally accepted in the United
States of America; the standards applicable to financial audits contained in Government Auditing Standards, issued
by the Comptroller General of the United States; and OMB Circular A-133, Audits of Sates, Local Governments,
and Non-Profit Organizations. Those standards and OMB Circular A-133 require that we plan and perform the
audit to obtain reasonable assurance about whether noncompliance with the types of compliance requirements
referred to above that could have a direct and material effect on a major federal program occurred. An audit
includes examining, on a test basis, evidence about the County’s compliance with those requirements and
performing such other procedures as we considered necessary in the circumstances. We believe that our audit
provides a reasonable basis for our opinion. Our audit does not provide a legal determination on the County's
compliance with those requirements.

In our opinion, the County of Summit complied, in all material respects, with the requirements referred to above
that are applicable to each of its major federal programs for the year ended December 31, 2004.

Internal Control over Compliance

The management of the County is responsible for establishing and maintaining effective internal control over
compliance with requirements of laws, regulations, contracts and grants applicable to federal programs. In
planning and performing our audit, we considered the County's internal control over compliance with
requirements that could have a direct and material effect on a major federal program in order to determine our
auditing procedures for the purpose of expressing our opinion on compliance and to test and report on internal
control over compliance in accordance with OMB Circular A-133.

Our consideration of the internal control over compliance would not necessarily disclose all matters in the internal
control that might be material weaknesses. A material weakness is a reportable condition in which the design or
operation of one or more of the internal control components does not reduce to a relatively low level the risk that
noncompliance with applicable requirements of laws, regulations, contracts and grants that would be material in
relation to a major federal program being audited may occur and not be detected within a timely period by
employees in the normal course of performing their assigned functions. We noted no matters involving the
internal control over compliance and its operation that we consider to be material weaknesses. However, we noted
matters involving internal control over financial reporting that do not require inclusion in this report, that we have
reported to management of the County in a separate letter dated July 6, 2005.



County of Summit, Ohio

Independent Auditor’s Report on Compliance with Requirements
Applicable to Each Major Program and Internal Control over
Compliance in Accordance with OMB Circular A-133

July 6, 2005

Page 2

Schedule of Expenditures of Federal Awards

We have audited the accompanying financial statements of the governmental activities, the business-type activities,
the aggregate discretely presented component unit, each major fund and the aggregate remaining fund information
of the County of Summit, Ohio as of and for the year ended December 31, 2004, which collectively comprise the
County's basic financial statements, and have issued our report thereon dated July 6, 2005. Our audit was
performed for the purpose of forming opinions on the basic financial statements. The accompanying Schedule of
Expenditures of Federal Awards is presented for purposes of additional analysis as required by OMB Circular A-
133 and is not a required part of the basic financial statements. Such information has been subjected to the
auditing procedures applied in the audit of the basic financial statements and, in our opinion, isfairly stated, in all
material respects, in relation to the basic financial statements taken as a whole.

This report is intended solely for the information and use of the audit committee, management, federal awarding
agencies, pass-through entities, and County Council and is not intended to be and should not be used by anyone

other than those specified parties. .
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COUNTY OF SUMMIT, OHIO
SCHEDULE OF EXPENDITURES OF FEDERAL AWARDS
FOR THE YEAR ENDED DECEMBER 31, 2004

Federal Grantor/ Federal Pass-Through Program
Sub Grantor/ CFDA Grantor's Award Federal Federal
Program Title Number Number Amount Receipts Disbursements
U.S. GENERAL SERVICES ADMINISTRATION
(Passed through Ohio Secretary of State Office)

Election Reform Payments 39.011 N/A 83,629 0 68,371
TOTAL U.S. GENERAL SERVICES ADMINISTRATION $0 $68,371
U.S. DEPARTMENT OF HOUSING AND URBAN DEVELOPMENT
Community Development Block Grant (Direct)

Entitlement Grant 14.218 B-02-UC-39-0006 1,679,000 588,623 588,623

B-03-UC-39-0006 1,285,000 390,210 522,341
B-04-UC-39-0006 1,252,000 0 0
Total Community Development Block Grant 978,833 1,110,964
HOME Investment Partnership Program (Direct)
Entitlement Grant 14.239 M-02-UC-39-0217 677,000 232,560 232,560
M-03-UC-39-0217 495,073 78,655 70,897
M-04-UC-39-0217 522,060 0 0
Total HOME Investment Partnership Program 311,215 303,457
TOTAL U.S. DEPARTMENT OF HOUSING AND URBAN DEVELOPMENT $1,290,048 $1,414,421
U.S. DEPARTMENT OF INTERIOR
National Park Service (Direct)
Cuyahoga Valley National Recreation Area 15.916
Wheatly Road Landslide - Cooperative Agreement H6160020010 50,000 25,000 25,000
TOTAL U.S. DEPARTMENT OF INTERIOR $25,000 $25,000
U.S. DEPARTMENT OF TREASURY
Bureau of Alcohol, Tabacco and Firearms (Direct)

Gang Resistance Education and Training (G.R.E.A.T.) 21.053 ATC03000260 33,000 10,432 0
TOTAL U.S. DEPARTMENT OF TREASURY $10,432 $0
U.S. DEPARTMENT OF JUSTICE
Office of Justice (Direct)

Drug Court Program 16.585 2001-DC-BX-0041 484,586 66,803 66,803

66,803 66,803

Grants to Encourage Arrest Policies & Enforcement of Protection Orders 16.590 2003-WE-BX-0037 480,735 105,414 189,303

Local Law Enforcement Block Grant 16.592 2002-LB-BX-1276 79,121 0 72,886

2003-LB-BX-2162 44,614 0 38,800

2004-LB-BX-0669 9,995 9,995 0

9,995 111,686

Criminal Alien Assistance Program 16.606 2003-AP-BX-0743 21,903 0 4,819
2004-AP-BX-0086 14,729 14,729 3,240

14,729 8,059

Community Gun Violence Prosecution Program (1/02 to 12/04) 16.609 2002-GP-CX-0073 240,000 100,000 120,000
100,000 120,000

COPS Universal Hiring Program Grant (3/02 to 2/05) 16.710 2002-UL-WX-0025 600,000 335,083 97,992
Creating a Culture of Integrity 2002-HS-WX-0056 65,000 58,857 48,298
393,940 146,290

Gang Resistance Education and Training (G.R.E.A.T.) 16.737 2004-JV-FX-0114 33,000 0 0
(Passed through Ohio Attorney General's Office)

Victims of Crime Act - Prosecutor's Office - Adult 16.575 2002VAGENE717 1,200 1,200 1,200

2003VAGENEOQ72T 36,060 27,273 27,639
2004VAGENEOQ72T 35,150 8,787 10,411
Victims of Crime Act - Prosecutor's Office - Juvenile 16.575 2003VAGENE613T 34,234 25,675 25,968
2004VAGENE613T 34,236 8,559 8,502
JUV. CRT Victims of Crime Act - Guadian Ad Litem Program 16.575 2004VACHAES509 33,103 33,103 25,684
2005VACHAE509 33,105 2,759 7,978
107,356 107,382

(Passed through Ohio Office of Criminal Justice Services)
Violence Against Women - Prosecutor's Office 16.588 2002-WF-VA2-8505 26,826 10,972 19,472
2002-WF-VA2-8505A 13,413 13,413 13,413
2004-WF-VA2-8505 24,009 0 0
2001-WF-VA2-8505A 17,148 0 0
Total Violence Against Women 24,385 32,885



PROS
PROS
PROS
PROS
PROS
ADAM
ADAM
ADAM
ADAM
Sheriff
Sheriff
Sheriff

PROS
JUV. CRT

JUV.CRT

PROS

OBM

JFS

MVGT
MVGT
MVGT
MVGT
MVGT
MVGT
MVGT
MVGT
MVGT
MVGT
MVGT
MVGT
MVGT
MVGT
MVGT
MVGT
MVGT

MVGT

COUNTY OF SUMMIT, OHIO
SCHEDULE OF EXPENDITURES OF FEDERAL AWARDS
FOR THE YEAR ENDED DECEMBER 31, 2004

Federal Grantor/ Federal Pass-Through Program

Sub Grantor/ CFDA Grantor's Award Federal Federal

Program Title Number Number Amount Receipts Disbursements
Byrne Memorial Formula Grant Programs 16.579

Victims Advocacy - Prosecutor's Office 2002-DG-D02-7362 33,122 8,719 0
2003-DG-D02-7362 33,122 30,920 33,122
2004-DG-D02-7362 33,122 0 0
Financial Literacy 2003-DG-C01-7083 22,500 11,815 16,895
2004-DG-C01-7083 21,922 0 0
Residential Treatment - Men 2001-RS-SAT-119 229,510 167,396 224,834
2003-RS-SAT-119 89,306 0 0
Mental Health Court 2002-DG-F01-7150 127,292 0 35,196
2003-DG-F01-7150 127,291 88,100 73,722
Personal Protective Equipment 2003-DG-H01-7275 12,094 11,973 11,973
Summit County Drug Unit 2002-DG-A01-7304 200,947 44,732 0
Summit County Drug Unit 2003-DG-A01-7304 200,947 163,124 200,885
Total Byrne Memeorial Formula Grant Programs 526,779 596,627

Project Safe Neighborhoods (PSN)

PSN - NE Ohio Violent Fugitive Task Force 16.609 2003-PS-PSN-305 75,000 12,639 21,585

PSN - Firearms Education Officer 16.609 2004-PS-PSN-341 75,000 11,250 7,964

Total Project Safe Neighborhoods 23,889 29,549

(Passed through Ohio Department of Youth Services)

JAIBG - Youth Accountability 16.523 2002-JB-013-B006 127,500 122,760 123,234

2002-JB-013-A014 124,480 22,250 4,946

2003-JB-017-A014 76,465 76,465 75,507

Total Youth Accountability 221,475 203,687
(Passed through Cuyahoga County Prosecutor's Office)

Project Safe Neighborhoods 16.609 2003-GP-CX-0147 81,920 22,882 40,605
TOTAL U.S. DEPARTMENT OF JUSTICE $1,617,647 $1,652,876
U.S. DEPARTMENT OF LABOR
(Passed through Simmit County's Department of Jobs and Family Services)

Youth Employment for Success - OBM 17.246

FY2003 304,859 252,950 177,824
FY2004 250,397 42,285 107,677
Total Youth Employment for Success 295,235 285,501
(Passed through Ohio Department of Jobs and Family Services)
Workforce Investment Act - WIA Cluster
Adult Program 17.258 SFY2004 1,341,547 1,332,015 588,281
Administration 167,782
Adult Program SFY2005 1,488,350 411,502
Administration 227,873
Youth Program 17.259 SFY2004 1,251,089 1,554,256 798,606
Administration 274,399
Youth Program SFY2005 1,357,125 359,624
Administration 141,565
Dislocated Workes 17.260 SFY2004 1,005,179 868,219 369,426
Administration 98,045
Dislocated Workes SFY2005 1,358,783 262,643
Administration 162,333
Special One Stop Adminstrative Grant (REED Act) N/A SFY2004 277,530 8,013
Total WIA 3,754,490 3,870,092
TOTAL U.S. DEPARTMENT OF LABOR $4,049,725 $4,155,593
U.S. DEPARTMENT OF TRANSPORTATION
(Passed through Ohio Department of Transportation)
Federal Highway Project Grants 20.205
Hametown Road Improvement PID-14992-TE21-GO20000354 1,756,000 98,051 285,817
Wye Road Bridge PID-18513-TE21-E032000506 590,000 0 42,377
South Main Street Project PID-8310&20672-TE21-E032000169 7,288,200 28,018 3,260,472
Killian Road Improvement PID-14993-TE21-G000242 3,148,120 0 1,711,564
Cleve-Mass Road Bridge PID-18515 1,036,000 169,171 754,643
State Road Bridge Replacement PID-20746-TE21-E033235 1,009,000 0 714,854
Triplett Blvd Bridge Replacement PID-20745-TE21-E033231 356,250 0 226,193
Hametown Road SIB PID-77501/SB0404 N/A 518,693 518,693
Tuscarawas Bridge SIB PID-77511/SB0405 N/A 559,761 559,761
Arlington Road SIB PID-77514/SB0407 N/A 211,431 211,431
Main Street Phase Ill SIB PID-77515/SB0406 N/A 657,110 657,110
5 Projects SIB PID-78327/SB0420 N/A 305,537 305,537
CEAO PID-17895/DOT1E033-000128 N/A 18,259 18,259
CEAO PID-20743/DOT1E033-000220 N/A 2,873 2,873
CEAO PID-20744/TE21E033-000228 N/A 7,817 7,817
CEAO PID-22962/TE21E033-000394 N/A 5,621 5,621
CEAO PID-24504/DOT1E032-000467 N/A 7,781 7,781
Total Highway Projects passed through State 2,590,123 9,290,803
(Passed through Ohio Department of Public Safety)
No Passing Zone Study GR-1 #4216 26,105 26,105 26,105

Total Federal Highway Project Grants

$ 2616228 $ 9,316,908




COUNTY OF SUMMIT, OHIO
SCHEDULE OF EXPENDITURES OF FEDERAL AWARDS
FOR THE YEAR ENDED DECEMBER 31, 2004

Federal Grantor/ Federal Pass-Through Program
Sub Grantor/ CFDA Grantor's Award Federal Federal
Program Title Number Number Amount Receipts Disbursements
State and Community Highway Safety 20.600
Sheriff Selective Traffic Enforcement Program (S.T.E.P.) 2003-PTM-N/1 71,855 32,569 0
Sheriff Selective Traffic Enforcement Program (S.T.E.P.) 2004-PTM-N/1 74,144 67,166 53,763
Sheriff Selective Traffic Enforcement Program (S.T.E.P.) 2005-PTM-N/1 57,546 0 7,709
Sheriff Law Enforcement Liaison 2004-CLE-7/6 52,050 51,142 51,142
Sheriff Law Enforcement Liaison 2005-CLE-7/6 79,500 0 20,309
Sheriff Cops-N-Shops 2003-J8C-J/6 19,620 5,856 0
Sheriff Cops-N-Shops 2004-8CS-J/6 24,860 24,821 14,142
Sheriff Safe Communities 2003-SA-N/1 34,950 8,355 0
Sheriff Safe Communities 2004-SA-N/1 35,399 27,940 20,443
Sheriff Safe Communities 2005-SA-N/1 38,477 0 5,817
Total State and Community Highway Safety 217,849 173,325
TOTAL U.S.DEPARTMENT OF TRANSPORTATION $2,834,077 $9,490,233
U.S. DEPARTMENT OF AGRICULTURE
(Passed through Ohio Department of Education)
Nutrition Cluster
JUV. CRT  School Breakfast - Juvenile Court 10.553 SFY 03-04 N/A 19,036 13,269
JUV. CRT SFY 04-05 N/A 9,051 13,309
Total School Breakfast 28,087 26,578
MR/DD National School Lunch Program MR/DD 10.555 066258-LLP4-2004 N/A 7,334 6,403
MR/DD 066258-LLP4-2005 N/A 3,530 4,317
JUV. CRT  National School Lunch Program - JUVENILE COURT SFY 03-04 N/A 29,004 20,047
JUV. CRT SFY 04-05 N/A 13,641 19,990
Total National School Lunch Program 53,509 50,757
TOTAL U.S. DEPARTMENT OF AGRICULTURE $81,596 $77,335
U.S. DEPARTMENT OF EDUCATION
(Passed through the Ohio Departemnt of Education)
MR/DD  Special Education, Part B-IDEA 84.027 066258-6BSF-2004 44,108 31,758 18,087
MR/DD  Special Education, Part B-IDEA 066258-6BSF-2005 56,119 16,836 22,448
Total Title VI-B 48,594 40,535
MR/DD  Early Childhood Special Education IDEA 84.173 066258-PGSI-2004 8,090 5,825 0
MR/DD  Early Childhood Special Education IDEA 066258-PGSI-2005 10,095 3,028 4,038
Total Early Childhood Special Education IDEA 8,853 4,038
MR/DD Title V Innovative Education Program 84.298 066258-C2S1-2004 $742 608 608
MR/DD Title V Innovative Education Program 066258-C2S1-2005 243 24 24
Total Title VI Innovation Education Program 632 632
(Passed through Ohio Rehabilitation Services Commission)
ADAM  Rehabilitation Services Grant 84.126 FY2003 N/A 957 957
Total Rehabilitation Services Grant 957 957
(Passed Through Ohio Department of Alcohol & Drug Addiction Services)
Safe and Drug-Free Schools and Communities_State Grants 84.186
ADAM Asian Services in Action International Community Empowerment Project 84.186A 77-08185-00-DFS-P-04-9631 85,000 42,500 42,500
77-08185-00-DFS-P-05-9631 85,000 42,500 42,500
Total Safe and Drug-Free Schools and Communites_State Grants 85,000 85,000
TOTAL U.S. DEPARTMENT OF EDUCATION $144,036 $131,162
U.S. DEPARTMENT OF ENERGY
(Passed Through Ohio Department of Development)
HWAP  Weatherization Assistance for Low Income Persons 81.042 FY03-04 DOE 349,999 202,832 132,163
FY04-05 DOE 349,999 268,829 247,682
Total Weatherization Assistance for Low Income Persons 471,661 379,845
TOTOAL U.S. DEPARTMENT OF ENERY $471,661 $379,845
U.S. DEPARTMENT OF HEALTH AND HUMAN SERVICES
Substance Abuse and Mental Health Services Administration (Direct)
JFS  Treatment Service for Women in Public Housing 93.230 1-H79-T112438-01 1,445,514 557,681 189,372
ADAM  Older Adult Outpatient Treatment 93.230 1-H79-TI13530-01 2003 455,212 344,098 344,098
1-H79-TI13530-01 2004 487,824 162,086 162,086
506,184 506,184
(Passed through Ohio Rehabilitation Services Commission)
MR/DD  Rehabilitation Services Grant - Traumatic Brain Injury 93.234 04/01/2003 to 9/30/2004 150,000 105,803 114,398
10/01/2004 to 8/31/2005 150,000 0 9,166
Total Rehabilitation Services Grant 105,803 123,564
(Passed through Ohio Department of Mental Retardation & Developmental Disablities)
MR/DD  Social Services Block Grant - Title XX 93.667 7/1/03 to 6/30/04 422,885 199,022 199,022
MR/DD 7/1/03 to 6/30/04 398,897 194,750 194,750
Total Social Services Block Grant 393,772 393,772
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COUNTY OF SUMMIT, OHIO

SCHEDULE OF EXPENDITURES OF FEDERAL AWARDS
FOR THE YEAR ENDED DECEMBER 31, 2004

Federal Grantor/ Federal Pass-Through Program
Sub Grantor/ CFDA Grantor's Award Federal Federal
Program Title Number Number Amount Receipts Disbursements
Medical Assistance Program 93.778
Medicaid Title XIX - Community Alternative Funding System
Community Alternative Funding System (CAFS) 7700018 N/A 4,268,680 7,823,614
Target Case Management (TCM) 7700018 N/A 1,292,404 1,901,198
Total Medicaid Title XIX 5,561,084 9,724,812
(Passed through Ohio Department of Mental Health)
Projects for Assistance in Transition from Homelessness (PATH) 93.150
PATH - Homeless FY2004 133,785 67,139 66,642
FY2005 136,389 34,097 68,195
Total Projects for Assistance in Transition from Homelessness 101,236 134,837
HAP Block 93.150 FY2005 2,024 1,012 0
Promoting Safe and Stable Families 93.556
Fast$ 45-CS-05-02 102,523 30,757 0
Social Services Block Grant - Title XX 93.667 FY2004 407,425 304,935 304,935
FY2005 202,526 101,645 101,645
Total Social Services Block Grant 406,580 406,580
Medical Assistance Program 93.778
PASARR FY2004 N/A 3,109 3,109
FY2005 N/A 1,059 1,059
Medicaid - ODMH 2004 - 2005 N/A 13,197,500 11,771,716
Total Medical Assistance Program 13,201,668 11,775,884
Block Grants for Community Mental Health Services 93.958
Child/Adolescent Block Grant FY2004 25,474 12,736 12,736
FY2005 25,474 12,738 6,370
Community Plan Block Grant FY2004 237,582 118,790 118,791
FY2005 237,582 118,792 118,791
Community Quality Review Team (CQRT) 05-0OCS2-BG-03-13 373,517 186,759 186,758
05-0OCS2-BG-05-13 373,517 186,758 186,760
Prevention Block Grant 45-CS-05-01 94,000 94,000 94,000
CCOE Jail Diversion 45-MHCJCCOE-BG-01-04 200,000 166,823 161,133
45-MHCJCCOE-BG-01-05 200,000 0 10,000
Total Block Grants for Commnity Mental Health Services 897,396 895,339
(Passed Through Ohio Department of Alcohol & Drug Addiction Services)
Medical Assistance Program 93.778
Medicaid - ODADAS 2004 - 2005 N/A 2,186,101 2,063,837
Block Grants for Prevention and Treatment of Substance Abuse 93.959
Federal Block Grant - Per Capita FY2004 2,473,168 1,236,586 1,480,562
FY2005 2,466,384 1,233,192 1,167,041
UMADAOP 77-03319-00-UMDOP-P-04-9172 161,421 80,710 80,710
77-03319-00-UMDOP-P-05-9172 161,421 80,712 80,711
Womens Set Aside:
Community Drug Board - Intensive Outpatient 77-03232-00-WOMEN-T-04-9019 479,644 239,822 239,822
77-03232-00-WOMEN-T-05-9019 607,701 303,851 159,054
Community Drug Board - Women's Recovery 77-03232-00-WOMEN-T-04-9018 128,057 64,029 64,029
Community Drug Board - Community Pride 77-01508-00-WOMEN-T-04-0004 221,865 110,932 110,931
77-01508-00-WOMEN-T-05-0004 221,865 110,933 73,958
Interval Brotherhood Homes 77-01505-00-WOMEN-T-04-9021 98,994 49,497 49,497
77-01505-00-WOMEN-T-05-9021 98,994 49,497 49,497
Mature Services 77-01059-00-WOMEN-T-04-8999 68,866 34,433 34,433
77-01059-00-WOMEN-T-05-8999 68,866 34,433 34,433
Community Partnership - Combating Underage Drinking 77-02953-01-CPREV-P-04-9943 40,000 20,000 20,000
77-02953-01-CPREV-P-05-9943 40,000 19,998 20,000
Higher Education Block Grant - Abuse Reduction Initiative 77-08485-00-HEDUC-P-04-0100 25,000 12,500 12,500
Total Block Grants for Prevention and Treatment of Substance Abuse 3,681,125 3,677,178
(Passed thhrough Ohio Department of Development)
Low Income Home Energy Assistance 93.568 FY03-04 HHS 627,598 350,200 202,279
FY04-05 HHS 575,301 246,080 401,960
Total Low Income Home Energy Assistance 596,280 604,239
(Passed thhrough Ohio Department of Health)
HIV Care Formula Grant - Ryan White Planning & Evaluations 93.917 77-1-003-BV-03 31,000 8,649 17,645
TOTAL U.S. DEPARTMENT OF HEALTH AND HUMAN SERVICES $28,235,328  $30,513,243
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COUNTY OF SUMMIT, OHIO
SCHEDULE OF EXPENDITURES OF FEDERAL AWARDS
FOR THE YEAR ENDED DECEMBER 31, 2004

Federal Grantor/ Federal Pass-Through Program
Sub Grantor/ CFDA Grantor's Award Federal Federal
Program Title Number Number Amount Receipts Disbursements
U.S. DEPARTMENT OF HOMELAND SECURITY
Cooperating Technical Partners (Direct) 97.045
Flood Plain Mapping Agreement EMC-2002-GR-0021 300,000 296,506 296,506
(Passed throuh Ohio Department of Public Safety)
State Domestic Preparedness Equipment Support Program 97.004
2004 State Homeland Security Program (SHSP) L081 2004-GE-T4-0025 1,934,968 1,876,919 1,829,929
2003 State Homeland Security Grant - Planning & Admin K474 2003-TE-TX-0199 20,000 2,700 0
2003 State Homeland Security Grant - Equipment Funds K474 2003-TE-TX-0199 416,000 311,233 406,395
2003 State Homeland Security Grant - Urban Search & Rescue K474 2003-TE-TX-0199 148,018 0 104,996
2003 State Homeland Security Grant - Planning & Admin Pt. Il K539 2003-MUP-30015 25,270 20,270 20,270
2003 State Homeland Security Grant - Equipment Funds Pt. Il K539 2003-MUP-30015 1,217,690 444,291 523,206
2003 State Homeland Security Grant - Pt. Il Exercise Funds K539 2003-MUP-30015 8,000 0 4,296
2003 State Homeland Security Grant - Pt. Il Urban Search & Rescue K539 2003-MUP-30015 150,468 0 14,777
Department of Justice Equipment Grant K195 2002-TE-CX-0106 240,790 191,094 235,051
Equipment Grant J809 2002-TE-CX-0106 76,859 72,994 0
Total State Domestic Preparedness Equipment Support Program 2,919,501 3,138,920
Public Assistance Grants 83.544
July 2003 Flooding/Tornado Event FEMA-1484-DR-153URCCI 583,021 141,327 186,992
May 2004 Landslide Disaster FEMA-1519-DR-153URCC1 415,964 373,995 373,995
Tornado's , Flooding, Severe Storms July 2003 FEMA-1484-DR-153UKG7H 283,199 214,032 166,704
Tornado's , Flooding, Severe Storms May 2004 FEMA-1519-DR-153UKG7H 46,938 46,938 46,938
Total Public Assistance Grants 776,292 774,629
Emergency Management Performance Grants 97.042
K965 EMC-2004-GR-7007 103,727 103,727 103,727
Total Emergency Management Performance Grants 103,727 103,727
Pre-Disaster Mitigation 97.047 EMC-2002-GR-7037 18,190 0 3,194
State and Local All Hazards Emergency Operations Planning 97.051
Supplemental Planning Grant K273 EMC-2003-GR-7006 64,162 64,162 2,680
Citizen Corps 97.053
Community Emergency Response Team (CERT) K851 EMC-2003-GR-7066 14,580 14,580 12,621
Supplemental CERT Grant K281 EMC-2003-GR-7026 10,000 7,500 0
Supplemental Citizen Corp Grant K283 EMC-2003-GR-7027 2,000 2,000 0
Total Citizen Corps 24,080 12,621
TOTAL U.S. DEPARTMENT OF HOMELAND SECURITY $4,184,268 $4,332,277
U.S. ENVIRONMENTAL PROTECTION AGENCY
(Passed through Ohio Environmental Protection Agency)
Nonpoint Source Implementation 66.460
Middle Cuyahoga River Water Quality Implementation Project C997550002-1 500,000 37,889 43,249
TOTAL U.S. ENVIRONMENTAL PROTECTION AGENCY $37,889 $43,249
TOTALS $42,981,707  $52,283,605




NOTE 1.

NOTE 2:

NOTE 3:

COUNTY OF SUMMIT, OHIO

NOTESTO THE SCHEDULE OF EXPENDITURES OF FEDERAL AWARDS

DECEMBER 31, 2004

SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING POLICIES

The accompanying Schedule of Expenditures of Federal Awards includes the federal
grant activity of the County of Summit and is presented on the cash basis of accounting.
The information in this schedule is presented in accordance with the requirements of
OMB Circular A-133, Audits of State and Governments, and Non-Profit Organizations.
Therefore, some amounts presented in this schedule may differ from amounts presented
in, or used in the preparation of, the basic financial statements.

The Schedule of Expenditures of Federal Awards excludes al federal expenditures
incurred by the County related to monies they expend on Temporary Assistance for
Needy Families (TANF) programs. A separate OMB Circular A-133 audit is performed.

MEDICAL ASSISTANCE PROGRAM

The amount received from Medicaid in 2004 represents only a portion of the total amount
billed by the County. The federal expenditures amount reported represents the actual
receipts at the Federal Financial Participation reimbursement rate.

FIFO METHOD

Federal funds are commingled with non-Federal funds for the Title XX Medicare Grant

CFDA No. 93.667. A firgt-in first-out (FIFO) method was used to arrive at grant
expenditures for the federal program.



COUNTY OF SUMMIT, OHIO

NOTES TO THE SCHEDULE OF EXPENDITURES OF FEDERAL AWARDS (continued)

NOTE 4: SUBRECIPIENTS:

Of the federal expenditures presented in the Schedule, the County provided federal awards to
subrecipients as follows:

Amount
CFDA Provided to
Program Title Number Subr eceipient
Community Development Block Grant - Entitlement 14.218 $ 629,342
Home Investment Partnership Program - Entitlement 14.239 125,000
Y outh Accountability 16.523 37,549
Drug Court Program 16.585 66,803
Byrne Memorial Formula Grant Programs: 16.579 350,647
Encourage Arrest Policies & Enforcement of Protection Orders 16.590 42 577
Workforce Investment Act--Adult Program 17.258 451,612
Workforce Investment Act--Y outh Program 17.259 1,140,373
Workforce Investment Act--Dislocated Workers 17.260 341,540
Rehabilitation Services Grant 84.126 957
Safe and Drug Free Schools and Community - State Grants: 84.186A 85,000
Projects for Assistance in Transition from Homeless 93.150 134,837
Substance Abuse and M ental Health Services Administration: 93.230 669,296
Social Services Block Grant - Title XX 93.667 406,580
Medical Assistance Program--Ohio Department of Mental
Hedlth 93.778 10,937,138
Ryan White Planning & Evaluations 93.917 17,645
Block Grants for Community Mental Health Services 93.958 876,029
Block Grants for Prevention and Treatment of Substance Abuse: 93.959 3,635,566
Construction paid by State to Contractors 20.205 6,836,031
Total Amount Provided to Subrecipients $ 26,784,522
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COUNTY OF SUMMIT, OHIO

SCHEDULE OF FINDINGS AND QUESTIONED COSTS
DECEMBER 31, 2004

| 1. SUMMARY OF AUDITOR’'SRESULTS

A-133 Ref.

.505(d)

(d) (1) (i) Type of Financial Statement Unqualified
Opinion

(d) (D) (i1) Were there any material control weakness No

conditions reported at the financial statement
level (GAGAS)?

(d) (D) (i) Were there any other reportable control No
weakness conditions reported at the
financial statement level (GAGAS)?

(d) (2) (iii) Was there any reported material non- No
compliance at the financial statement
level (GAGAS)?

(d) () (iv) Were there any material internal control No
weakness conditions reported for major
federal programs?

(d) () (iv) Were there any reportable conditions reported No
for major programs which were not considered
to be material?

(d) (1) (v) Type of Mgjor Programs’ Unqualified
Compliance Opinion
(d) (1) (vi) Arethere any reportable findings under No

Section 510(a) of Circular A-133?

(@ (D) (vi)) | Major Programs (list):

Medicaid — Title XIX CFDA #93.778
Homeland Security CFDA # 97.004
(d) (1) (viii) | Dollar Threshold: Type A/B Type A: >$1,568,508
Programs TypeB: All others
(d) (1) (ix) Low Risk Auditee? No

2. FINDINGSRELATED TO THE FINANCIAL STATEMENTS
REQUIRED TO BE REPORTED IN ACCORDANCE WITH GAGAS

| NONE |

| 3. FINDINGS AND QUESTIONED COSTSFOR FEDERAL AWARDS

| NONE |
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COUNTY OF SUMMIT, OHIO

SCHEDULE OF PRIOR AUDIT FINDINGS
DECEMBER 31, 2004

Finding Finding Summary Fully Not Corrected, Partially Corrected,;
Number Corrected? Significantly Different Corrective
Action Taken; or Finding No Longer
Valid; Explain:
03-01 | Summit County Housing No Not Corrected; policy and procedures
Rehabilitation Program has a lack manual not implemented until 2005.

of controls over the loan
application process.

03-02 | The County has a lack of No Significantly Different Corrective
monitoring over subrecipients Action Taken; County implemented a
which received entitlement grant monitoring policy in 2004.
funds.

03-03 | Inresponse to acomplaint, the Yes N/A

Internal Audit Department
reviewed policies and procedures
of the Department of Community
and Economic Development and
performed specific program
compliance procedures. Asresult,
employees of the department were
indicted and a finding for recovery
was issued.
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JOHN A. DONOFRIO
Fiscal Officer

County of Summit

July 6, 2005

To the Honorable County of Summit Executive, Council Members,
and Citizens of the County of Summit:

As Fiscal Officer of the County of Summit, I am pleased to present the Comprehensive Annual Financial
Report (CAFR) of the County of Summit for the year ended December 31, 2004. This CAFR was prepared in
conformity with Generally Accepted Accounting Principles (GAAP) as set forth by the Governmental
Accounting Standards Board (GASB). This is the third year the CAFR includes GASB Statement No. 34,
Basic Financial Statements-and Management’s Discussion and Analysis-for State and Local Governments.

Responsibility for both the accuracy of the data presented and the completeness and fairness of the
presentation, including disclosures, lays with the management of the County, and in particular the
Fiscal Office of the County of Summit. To provide a reasonable basis of making these representations,
management of the County of Summit, Ohio has established a comprehensive internal control framework
that is designed to protect the governments’ assets from loss, theft, or misuse and to compile
sufficient reliable information for the preparation of the county’s financial statements in conformity
with GAAP. Because the cost of internal controls should not outweigh their benefits, the County’s
comprehensive framework of internal controls has been designed to provide reasonable rather than
absolute assurance that the financial statements will be free from material misstatements. To the best
of my knowledge and belief, the enclosed data is accurate in all material respects and is reported in a
manner designed to present fairly and completely the financial position of the County and the results
of its operations.

The County of Summit financial statements have been audited by Rea & Associates, Inc., a firm of
licensed certified public accountants. The goal of the independent audit was to provide reasonable
assurance that the financial statements of the County of Summit for the fiscal year ended December 31,
2004, are free of material misstatement. The independent audit involves examining, on a test basis,
evidence supporting the amounts and disclosures in the financial statements; assessing the accounting
principles used and significant estimates made by management; and evaluating the overall financial

statement presentation. The independent auditor issued an unqualified opinion that the County of
Summit financial statements for the fiscal year ended December 31, 2004, are fairly presented in
conformity with GAAP. The independent auditor’s report is presented as the first component of the

financial section of this report.

The independent audit of the financial statements of the County of Summit was part of a broader,
federally mandated “Single Audit” designed to meet the special needs of federal grantor agencies. The
standards governing Single Audit engagements require the independent auditor to report not only on the
fair presentation of the financial statements, but also on the government’s compliance and internal
controls over financial reporting, and compliance with laws, regulations, contracts and reports
requirements and internal control requirements of federal awards. These reports are available in the
County of Summit’s separately issued Single Audit Report.

GAAP require that management provide a narrative introduction, overview, an analysis to accompany the
basic financial statements in the form of Management’s Discussion and Analysis (MD&A). This letter of
transmittal is designed to complement MD&A and should be read in conjunction with it. The County of
Summit’s MD&A can be found immediately following the report of the independent auditors.

The CAFR is divided into three sections: the Introductory Section, the Financial Section, and the
Statistical Section. The Introductory Section includes the table of contents, this transmittal letter,
the Certificate of Achievement for Excellence in Financial Reporting, an organizational chart of the
County and a list of elected officials. The Financial Section includes the Report of Independent
Auditor’s, Management’s Discussion and Analysis, the Basic Financial Statements and Notes that provide
an overview of the County’s financial position and operating results, the Combining Statements for
nonmajor funds and other schedules that provide detailed information relative to the Basic Financial
Statements. The Statistical Section presents various tables reflecting social and economic information,
financial trends, and fiscal capacity of the County.

AUDITOR DIVISION RECORDING DIVISION SERVICE DIVISION TREASURER DIVISION
175 S. Main Street 175 S. Main Street 1030 E. Tallmadge Ave. 175 S. Main Street

Akron, Ohio 44308 Akron, Ohio 44308 Akron, Ohio 44310 Akron, Ohio 44308
Phone: 330.643.2625 Phone: 330.643.2719 Phone: 330.630.7226 Phone: 330.643.2606

Fax: 330.643.2622 Fax: 330.630.7240 Fax: 330.643.2864



Profile of the Governnent

The County of Summt, forned in 1840, is located in northeastern Chio, approximtely 25 niles south of
A evel and, and covers an area of 416 square mles. As of the 2000 census, the County was the fifth nost
popul ous of the 88 counties in Chio with a popul ati on of 542,899. The County seat is the Gty of Akron,
which is the largest nunicipality in the County with a 2000 popul ati on of 217,074. 1In addition to the
City of Akron, there are 21 other cities and villages and 9 townships located within the County.

The County is in the Akron Primary Metropolitan Statistical Area (PMSA) conprised of Summt and Portage
Counties with a population of 694,960 according to the 2000 census. It is also in the O evel and- Akron-
Lorain Consolidated Metropolitan Statistical Area (OVBA) with a popul ation of 2,945,831 according to the
2000 census, making it the 13'" npbst popul ous CMBA of 19 in the country.

In 1979, the voters of the County adopted a Charter establishing the first charter form of county
governnment in the State of Chio (State). The Charter becanme effective January 1, 1981. It replaced the
statutory formof county governnent. The Charter currently provides for a County Executive and an 11
menber County Council, conprised of three nmenmbers elected at |arge and eight nenbers representing
districts.

In addition to the County Executive and the Council, there are five elected adm nistrative officials of
the County, each of whom has independent authority within the limts of the State statutes affecting the
particular office. These officials, elected to four year terns, are the Fiscal Oficer, Cerk of
Courts, Engineer, Sheriff, and Prosecuting Attorney. Comon Pl eas Judges, including Donestic Rel ations,
Juvenil e Court and Probate Court Judges are also elected on a county-w de basis and serve six-year
terns.

The County has significant responsibilities in the areas of general governnent, hunman services and
soci al services, civil and crimnal justice systens, police protection, road and bridge maintenance,
and other m scellaneous County services. The County's Departnment of Environmental Services operates a
sewer system and a water system The Edwin Shaw Hospital, a conprehensive nedical rehabilitation
hospital, is presented in the financial statements as a discretely presented conponent unit.

In accordance with Governmental Accounting Standards Board (GASB) Statenment No. 39, “Determning
Whet her Certain Organi zations Are Conponent Units — An Arendnent of GASB Statement No.14,” the County
of Summit’s financial statenents include organizations, activities, functions and conponent units for
whi ch the County is primarily accountabl e.

Factors Affecting Financial Condition
The information presented in the financial statements is perhaps best understood when it is considered
fromthe broader perspective of the specific environnent within which the County operates.

Local Econony

Historically, the County's econony has been associated with the rubber industry. Although the rubber
industry’s contributions to the econony remain substantial, the focus of that industry in the region
has changed from manufacturing to research and devel opnent and adninistration. The Goodyear Tire &
Rubber Conpany is the | argest manufacturing enployer in the County with approxi mately 3,500 Akron area
enpl oyees.

More recently, spawned from the rubber industry, Summit County has become a national |eader in the
field of plastic and polyners. A recent study ranked Chi o nunber one in plastics and polynmers. The
greater Akron region is honme to the largest nunber of polyner conpanies in Chio and the industry
enmpl oys nore than 50,000 people in the area. Custom nolders, captive nolders, resin processors, and
equi prent manufactures all call Chio hone. Mre than half of the total U S. plastic consunption occurs
wi thin 500 nmiles of Northeastern Chio.

The conbined resources of three nmmjor Universities, including The University of Akron and an
international industrial consortium nakes greater Akron one of the leading liquid crystal and pol yner
research and devel opnent centers in the world.

The Greater Akron Region is home to nore than 600 netal working firms, often conbining in a unique
industrial resource network. They provide capabilities unmatched in the United States in areas ranging
fromsteel manufacturing, nmetal finishing, heat treating, welding, conplex nachining, nold naking and
mol d repairing using the best avail abl e technol ogy, machi nery building, rebuilding and design. Mre
than 800 suppliers of critical elenents of machine making such as steel, castings and forging, |arge
capacity machining, nolds, heat treating and plating services and commercial itenms including hydraulic
assenblies and industrial controls are located in close proxinmty to G eater Akron, Ohio.

The County is the corporate headquarters for five corporations with annual sales or revenues of nore
than one billion dollars each. These are The Goodyear Tire & Rubber Conpany, FirstEnergy Corp.,
International Steel Goup, Inc., Jo-Ann Stores, Inc. and A Schul man, Inc.



According to the Chio Department of Job and Family Services, the Akron Primary Statistical Area,
nonagri cul tural wage and sal ary enpl oynent dropped 1,000 between Decenber 2003, and Decenber 2004. The
service-providing sector lost 700 jobs over the year. Reductions in trade, transportation, and
utilities, professional and business services, and government negated increases in information and
educational and health services. Slight losses in construction and manufacturing, natural resources,
and mining | owered enploynent in the goods-producing industries by 300.

The County’s average unenploynment rate increased from5.7%in 2003 to 6.1% in 2004 according to the
Chi o Departnent of Job and Family Services. This rate is greater than the national average of 5.5%

Long-term Fi nanci al Pl anni ng

Annual |y, Summt County Councils adopts a five year Capital |nprovenment Program This program
represents the County’s planned investnment in infrastructure to serve our businesses and citizens, as
wel |l as infrastructure to performthe basic functions of County government.

The Juvenile Court & Detention Center project enconpassed a renovation and expansion to the existing
facilities, which were too small for the current staff. The additions included nearly 78,000 square
feet of both secure and non-secure space. Construction began in July 2002 and was conpleted in July of
2004. The inproved building has a new | ook, nore parking, and easy access by the way of nore dom nant
entrances. The users will find nore anenities, technol ogy upgrades, security upgrades and a better and
nmore efficient way to conduct daily operations. The juveniles coming to the Center will also benefit
from enhanced and nore effective services that include education, training and rehabilitation. The
County issued $14, 595,000 of general obligation bonds in 2002 and $4, 000,000 of general obligation
bonds in 2003 to pay the costs of the project.

Summit County is expanding its court facilities located in downtown Akron. The expansion has three
mai n obj ectives; provide better service to the public and staff, create a nore efficient space, and
make the building nore secure. The 70,000 square foot expansion will house the Donestic Relation Court
and the Cerk of Courts. The three new courtroons will pronmote increased efficiency during court
proceedings with easy access for the public. The courthouse is currently under construction. G ound
was broken in February of 2004, with conpletion of construction anticipated in the fall of 2005. The
County issued $19, 300, 000 of general obligation bonds in 2003 to pay costs of the project.

The next mmjor planned capital inprovenent is a new 43,000 square foot Sheriff’'s Admnistration
Building to be located at the County Jail. The project will be bid in 2005 wth conpletion
anticipated in early 2007. The County plans on issuing $5.7 nillion of general obligation debt in
2006, to finance the project.

On Decenber 1, 2003, County Council authorized the Summit County Engineer to enter into | oan agreenents
with the Chio Departnment of Transportation pursuant to the State Infrastructure Bank Act, in a total
amount not to exceed $7,900,000. The l[oan proceeds will be used for the paynment or for reinbursenent
of previous paynents of costs relating to provisions of specified road, bridge and other inprovenent
projects. The County needs to be able to pay its $7.9 nillion share of the projects, which wll
receive another $22 mllion of State and federal noney. |In 2004, the County received $2, 826, 914, of
the authorized anmpbunt in | oan proceed noney.

For the past two years, Edwi n Shaw Hospital has been in partnership with Akron General Medical Center
(AGMD). Wth AGC s expertise in Level | trauma, orthopedic, and rehab care as well as a certification
as Summit County’s only accredited stroke center, the collaborative care between these healthcare
| eaders has enhanced patient services and access in our area.

Ef fective May 15, 2005, Edwi n Shaw Hospital becane officially part of AGMC. Under the agreenment, AGMC
is paying $1.35 million to acquire the hospital business but not the 100 plus acre property and
bui l dings. The County has not deci ded how the | and and buildings will be used in the long run.

Cash Managenent Policies and Practices

Investnents and deposits of County npney are governed by the State's Uniform Depository Act (the
“UDA"), which is applicable to all counties. The Fiscal Oficer is responsible for making i nvestnents
and deposits of County noneys. The UDA requires the Fiscal Oficer to conmply with continuing education

requirements established by the State Treasurer. As the Fiscal Oficer of Summit County, | have
conpleted all of those requirements. Under the UDA, the County has created an |nvestnent Advisory
Board, conposed of the County Executive, the President of Council and the Fiscal Oficer. The

I nvest nent Advi sory Board has adopted an investnment policy and has filed a copy of that investment
policy with the State Auditor, as required by the UDA. The Investnent Advisory Board neets quarterly
to review or revise its policies and to advise the Fiscal Oficer on the investnment of County npney.

As nore conpletely described in Note 2(F) of the notes to financial statements, the County enploys a
consol i dated cash pool to facilitate the investnent of all County funds. Additional information
concerning legal requirenents of Chio law and the level of custodial risk as required by GASB St at enent
No. 40, can be found in Note 6 of the notes to the financial statenents.



Risk Management

The County Risk Manager monitors and directs the entire insurance program of Summit County. The County
maintains its property and liability coverage with various private insurance companies. A complete
schedule of this coverage can be found in Table 13 cf the Statistical Section.

The County participates in the State of Ohic Retrospective Rated Workers’ Compensation self insurance
program. This program involves the payment of a minimum premium for administrative services and stop-
loss coverage up front plus the actual claim costs for employees injured. The County maintains a self-
insurance program for health care benefits for County employees and their dependents. The transactions
relating to these self-insurance programs are accounted for in internal service funds. Additional
information on these self-insurance programs can be found in Note 22 of the notes to the financial
statements.

Pension and Postemployment Benefits

The County participates in statewide pension plans, which provide healthcare benefits for their
retirees. These pension plans and benefits are discussed in Notes 12 and 13 in the notes to the
financial statements.

Awards and Acknowledgements

The Government Finance Officers Association (GFOA) awarded a Certificate of Achievement for Excellence
in Financial Reporting to the County for it’s comprehensive annual financial report (CAFR) for the
fiscal year ended December 31, 2003. This was the eighteenth consecutive year that the County has
received this prestigious award. In order to be awarded a Certificate of Achievement, a governmental
unit must publish an easily readable and efficiently organized CAFR. This report satisfied both GAAP
and applicable legal requirements.

A Certificate of Achievement is valid for a period of one year only. We believe that our current CAFR
continues to meet the Certificate of Achievement Program’s requirements and we are submitting it to the
GFOA to determine its eligibility for another certificate.

The Government Finance Officers Association (GFOA) presented an awarded of Distinguished Budget
Presentation to the County for it’s annual budget for the year beginning January 1, 2004. This was the
second consecutive year, fourth year that the County has received this prestigious award. In order to
receive this awarded, a governmental unit must publish a budget document that meets program criteria as
a policy document, as an operations guide, as a financial plan and as a communication device.

This award is valid for a period of one year only.

Preparing this report for publication would not have been possible without the cooperation of each
elected official and a large number of County employees. I am grateful for their assistance and
cooperation

I would like to extend my sincere appreciation to the members of my staff in the Fiscal Office. I am
grateful for their professionalism and dedication in producing this report. Sincere appreciation is
also extended to the County’s external auditors, Rea & Associates, Inc., for their guidance and
constructive assistance.

Finally, I wish to thank the citizens of the County of Summit for this opportunity to continue to
improve the professionalism of financial reporting for the County.

Kn A. Donofrio %

iscal Officer, County of Summit
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Rea & Associates, Inc.

ACCOUNTANTS AND BUSINESS CONSULTANTS

July 6, 2005

Summit County Council
Summit County, Ohio 44308

REPORT OF INDEPENDENT AUDITOR’S

We have audited the accompanying financial statements of the governmental activities, the business-type
activities, the aggregate discretely presented component unit, each major fund, and the aggregate remaining
fund information of the County of Summit, Ohio (the County), as of and for the year ended December 31,
2004, which collectively comprise the County’s basic financial statements as listed in the table of contents.
These financial statements are the responsibility of the County's management. Our responsibility is to
express opinions on these financial statements based on our audits. We did not audit the financial results of
the Children’s Services Board, a major fund of the governmental activities. Those financial results were
audited by other auditors whose report thereon has been furnished to us, and our opinion, insofar as it
relates to the amounts included for the Children's Services Board, is based on the report of the other
auditors.

We conducted our audits in accordance with auditing standards generally accepted in the United States of
America and the standards applicable to financial audits contained in Government Auditing Standards,
issued by the Comptroller General of the United States. Those standards require that we plan and perform
the audit to obtain reasonable assurance about whether the financial statements are free of material
misstatement. An audit includes examining, on a test basis, evidence supporting the amounts and
disclosures in the financial statements. An audit also includes assessing the accounting principles used and
significant estimates made by management, as well as evaluating the overall financial statement
presentation. We believe that our audit, and the report of other auditors, provides a reasonable basis for
our opinions.

In our opinion, based on our audits and the report of other auditors, the financial statements referred to
above present fairly, in all material respects, the respective financial position of the governmental activities,
the business-type activities, the aggregate discreetly presented component unit, each major fund, and the
aggregate remaining fund information of Summit County, Ohio, as of December 31, 2004, and the
respective changes in financial position and cash flows, where applicable, and the respective budgetary
comparison for the General, Job & Family Services, Children Services Board, Alcohol, Drug Addiction &
Mental Health, and Board of Mental Retardation Funds for the years then ended in conformity with
accounting principles generally accepted in the United States of America.

11



County of Summit

Report of Independent Auditor’s
July 6, 2005

Page 2

In accordance with Government Auditing Standards, we have also issued our report dated July 6, 2005 on
our consideration of the County’s internal control over financial reporting and our tests of its compliance
with certain provisions of laws, regulations, contracts, grant agreements and other matters. The purpose of
that report is to describe the scope of our testing of internal control over financial reporting and compliance
and the results of that testing, and not to provide an opinion on the internal control over financial reporting
or on compliance. That report is an integral part of an audit performed in accordance with Gover nment
Audit Standards and should be considered in conjunction with this report when assessing the results of our
audit.

Management’'s Discussion and Analysis on pages 13 through 19 are not a required part of the basic
financial statements but are supplementary information required by the Governmental Accounting
Standards Board. We have applied certain limited procedures, which consisted principally of inquiries of
management regarding the methods of measurement and presentation of the required supplementary
information. However, we did not audit the information and express no opinion on it.

Our audit was conducted for the purpose of forming opinions on the financial statements that collectively
comprise the County’s basic financial statements. The introductory section, combining and individual
nonmajor fund financial statements and other schedules, and statistical section listed in the table of contents
are presented for purposes of additional analysis and are not a required part of the basic financial
statements. We subjected the combining and individual nonmajor fund financial statements to the auditing
procedures applied in the audit of the basic financial statements and, in our opinion, is fairly stated in all
material respects in relation to the basic financial statements taken as a whole. We did not subject the
introductory section and statistical section to the auditing procedures applied in the audit of the basic
financial statements and, accordingly, we express no opinion on them.

Woa Yidotrcisties e .

12



COUNTY OF SUM T, CdH O
MANAGEMENT’ S DI SCUSSI ON AND ANALYSI S
FOR THE YEAR ENDED DECEMBER 31, 2004

UNAUDI TED

Managenent’'s Di scussion and Anal ysis (MD&A) provides the reader with a narrative overvi ew and anal ysis of the
County of Summit, Chio's (the County) financial activities for the year ended Decenber 31, 2004. The intent
of this discussion and analysis is to look at the County’'s financial perfornance as a whole. The MD&A shoul d
be read in conjunction with the County’'s transmittal letter, notes to financial statements and financial
statenments to enhance their understanding of the County’'s financial perfornance.

FI NANCI AL HI GHLI GHTS
Key financial highlights for 2004 are as foll ows:

The assets of the County exceeded its liabilities at the close of the year ended Decenmber 31, 2004, by
$501.3 nmillion (net assets). O this ampunt, $128.2 nillion nay be used to nmeet the County’s ongoing
obligations to citizens and creditors.

The County’s total net assets decreased $6.4 nillion. Net assets related to governnental activities
decreased $8.6 mllion, which represents a decrease of 2.4 percent from 2003. Net assets related to
busi ness-type activities increased $2.2 nmillion or 1.5 percent from 2003.

For governnental activities, general revenues accounted for $183.3 in revenues or 48 percent of all
revenues. Program specific revenues in the form of charges for services, grants and contributions
accounted for $198.8 million or 52 percent of total revenues of $382.1 million.

The County had $390.7 million in expenses related to governnental activities; only $198.8 nmillion of
these expenses were offset by program specific charges for services, operating and capital grants or
contributions. GCeneral revenues (primarily taxes) of $183.3 million were adequate to provide for these
prograns.

Among maj or funds, the General Fund had $108.2 nillion in revenues and $104.6 nmillion in expenditures.
The General Fund's bal ance decreased to $72.4 mllion, a decrease of $2.2 million from 2003.

At the end of the current fiscal year, unreserved fund bal ance for the General Fund was $64 million or
61.2 percent of total General Fund expenditures.

The County’s total debt decreased $12.2 nillion during the current year. The key factor for this
decrease was schedul ed debt paynents of approximately $9.2 nillion and early paynents made in Decenber
2004, due January 2005.

USI NG THI S COMPREHENSI VE ANNUAL FI NANCI AL REPORT ( CAFR)

This annual report consists of a series of financial statements and notes to those statenents. These
statenments are organi zed so the reader can understand the County of Summit as a financial whole or as an
entire operating entity. The statements then proceed to provide an increasingly detailed | ook at specific
financial activities.

The County’s basic financial statenents conprise three conponents: 1) county-w de financial statenments, 2)
fund financial statements, and 3) notes to financial statenents. This report also contains other
suppl ementary information in addition to the basic financial statenents thensel ves.

The Statenent of Net Assets and Statenent of Activities provide information about the activities of the
County as a whole and presents a long-termview of the County’s finances. Fund financial statements provide
the next level of detail. For governnental funds, these statenments tell the reader how services were
financed in the short term as well as, what remains for future spending. The fund financial statements al so
|l ook at the County’s npbst significant funds with all other nonnmajor funds presented in total in one colum.
In the case of the County, the General Fund is the nost significant fund.

REPORTI NG THE COUNTY AS A WHOLE
Statenent of Net Assets and the Statenent of Activities

The anal ysis of the County as a whol e begins on page 20. One of the nost inportant questions asked about the
County’'s finances is, “How did we do financially during 2004?" The Statenent of Net Assets and the Statenent
of Activities report information about the County as a whole and about its activities in a way that hel ps
answer this question. These statements include all assets and liabilities using the accrual nethod of
accounting sinmlar to the accounting used by nost private-sector conpanies. This method of accounting takes
into account, all of the current year’'s revenues and expenses regardl ess of when cash is received or paid.
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COUNTY OF SUW T, CH O
MANAGEMENT S DI SCUSSI ON AND ANALYSI S

These two statenents report the County's net assets and changes in those assets. This change in net assets
is inmportant because it tells the reader that, for the County as a whole, the financial position of the
County has inproved or dimnished. The causes of this change may be the result of many factors, sone
financial, sone not. Non-financial factors include the County's tax base, current property tax laws in Chio
restricting revenue growth, and other factors.

In the Statement of Net Assets and the Statement of Activities, the County is divided into two distinct kinds
of activities:

Governnental Activities — Mdst of the County’'s prograns and services are reported here including general
government, public safety, public works, and health and hunan services. These services are funded
primarily by taxes and intergovernnental revenues including federal and state grants and other shared
revenues.

Busi ness- Type Activities — These services are provided on a charge for goods or services basis to
recover all of the expenses of the goods or services provided.

The governnent-wi de financial statenents can be found on pages 20-21 of this report.
FUND FI NANCI AL STATEMENTS

A fund is a grouping of related accounts that is used to maintain control over resources that have been
segregated for specific activities or objectives. The County, like other state and | ocal governnents, uses
fund accounting to ensure and denonstrate conpliance with finance-related |l egal requirements. Al of the
funds of the County can be divided into three categories: governnental funds, proprietary funds, and
fiduciary funds.

Fund financial reports provide detailed infornmation about the County’'s nmmjor funds. The County uses many
funds to account for a nultitude of financial transactions. However, these fund financial statenents focus
on the County’s nobst significant funds, not on the County as a whole. The County’'s nmjor governnental funds
are: the General Fund; Job & Family Services; Children Services Board; Al cohol, Drug Addiction & Mental
Heal t h; and Board of Mental Retardation.

Governnental funds: Governnental funds are used to account for essentially the same functions reported as
governmental activities in the government-w de financial statenents. However, unlike the governnent-w de
financial statenments, governnental fund financial statenents focus on events that produce near-terminfl ows
and outflows of spendable resources, as well as on the bal ances of spendable resources available at the end
of the year. This information may be useful in evaluating a governnent’s near-termfinancing requirenents.

Because the focus of the governnental funds is narrower than that of the governnent-w de financial
statenents, it is useful to conpare the information presented for governmental funds with sinilar infornation
presented for governnmental activities in the governnment-w de financial statements. By doing so, readers nay
better understand the long-term inpact of the government’'s near-term financing decisions. Both the
governmental fund bal ance sheet and the governnental fund statenent of revenues, expenditures, and changes in
fund bal ances provide a reconciliation to facilitate this conparison between governnmental funds and
governmental activities.

The County maintains a nultitude of individual governmental funds. Information is presented separately in
the governmental fund bal ance sheet and in the governnental statement of revenues, expenditures, and changes
in fund bal ances for the major funds, which were identified earlier. Data fromthe other governnmental funds
are conbined into a single, aggregated presentation. I ndi vidual fund data for each of these non-nmjor
governmental funds is provided in the form of conmbining statements el sewhere in this report. The basic
governmental fund financial statements can be found on pages 22-25 of this report.

The County adopts an annual appropriated budget for its General Fund. Budgetary comparison statenents have
been provided for all annually budgeted funds to denpnstrate conpliance.

Proprietary funds: The County maintains two different types of proprietary funds. Enterprise funds are used
to report the same functions presented as business-type activities in the governnent-w de financial
statements. The County uses an enterprise fund to account for its water and sewer operations. |Internal
service funds are an accounting device used to accunmul ate and allocate costs internally anong the County’s
various functions. The County uses internal service funds to account for its office services, self-insurance
prograns, workers’' conpensation and tel ephone systems. The basic proprietary fund financial statenents can
be found on pages 31-34 of this report.

Fi duciary funds: Fiduciary funds are used to account for resources held for the benefit of parties outside
the governnment. Fiduciary funds are not reflected in the government-w de financial statenents because the
resources of those funds are not available to support the County’'s own prograns. The accounting used for
fiduciary funds is much like that used for proprietary funds. The basic fiduciary fund financial statenents
can be found on page 35 of this report.

Notes to financial statenents: The notes provide additional information that is essential to a full

under st andi ng of the data provided in the government-w de and fund financial statements. Notes to financial
statements can be found on pages 36-59 of this report.
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COUNTY OF SUW T, CH O
MANAGEMENT S DI SCUSSI ON AND ANALYSI S

O her information: |In addition to the basic financial statements and acconpanying notes, this report also
presents conbining and individual fund statenents, schedul es and statistical section, which can be found on
pages 61-133 of this report.

GOVERNVENT- W DE FI NANCI AL ANALYSI S

As noted earlier, net assets may serve over tine as a useful indicator of a governnment’s financial position.
In the case of the County, assets exceeded liabilities by $501.3 mllion ($349.8 million in governmental
activities and $151.5 million in business-type activities) at the close of the npbst recent year. The
County’s financial position decreased for the governmental and increased in the business-type activities.

A large portion of all of the County's net assets (62.5 percent) reflect its investment in capital assets
(e.g., land, buildings, infrastructure, and nachinery and equi pment), less any related debt used to acquire
those assets. The County uses these capital assets to provide services to citizens; consequently, these
assets are not available for future spending. Although the County's investnent in its capital assets is
reported net of related debt, it should be noted that the resources needed to repay this debt nust be
provi ded from other sources, since capital assets thenselves cannot be used to liquidate these liabilities.

County of Sunmit, Chio — Net Assets
(in thousands)

Gover nnent al Busi ness- Type
Activities Activities Tot al
2004 2003 2004 2003 2004 2003
Asset s
Current and Ot her Assets $ 379,384 $ 416, 869 $ 19,177 $ 22,337 $ 398,561 $ 439,206
Capi tal Assets 242, 402 222,203 222, 677 222,329 465, 079 444,532
Total Assets 621, 786 639, 072 241, 854 244, 666 863, 640 884, 738
Liabilities
Long-Term Li abilities 131, 428 136, 069 87, 682 91, 543 219, 110 227,612
Other Liabilities 140, 589 145, 651 2,635 3, 765 143, 224 149, 416
Total Liabilities 272,017 281, 720 90, 317 95, 308 362, 334 377,028
Net Assets
Invested in Capital assets,

Net of Rel ated Debt 173, 820 165, 161 137,182 131, 468 311, 002 296, 629
Restricted 62, 075 119, 478 62, 075 119, 478
Unrestricted 113, 874 73,713 14, 355 17, 889 128, 229 91, 602
Total Net Assets $ 349,769 $ 358,352 $ 151,537 $ 149,357 $ 501,306 $ 507,709

An addi tional portion of the County’s net assets, $62.1 million (12.2 percent), represents resources that are
subject to external restrictions on how they nmay be used. The remmining balance, $128.2 mllion (25.3
percent), of unrestricted net assets nay be used to nmeet the County’s ongoing obligations to citizens and
creditors.

At the end of the current year, the County is able to report positive balances in all three categories of net
assets, both for the County as a whole, as well as for its separate governmental and business-type
activities.

GOVERNVENTAL ACTI VI TI ES

Human Service accounts for $117.8 million of expenses out of $390.7 mllion total expenses for governmental
activities, or 30.1 percent of that total. The next largest programis Health, accounting for $112.3
mllion, which represents 28.7 percent of total governmental expenses.

Tax revenue accounts for $151 nillion of the $382.1 nillion total revenue for governnental activities or 39.5
percent of total revenue.

O the $390.7 nmillion expenditures in governnmental activities, $44.8 nillion were covered by direct charges
to the recipients of those services. The mpjority of the charges for services were derived from tax
settlements, adnministrative fees, recording real estate transfers, and title and court fees. Charges for
safety services included fees for boarding prisoners, policing contracts and special details for sheriff
deputi es.

Addi tional program revenues provided by the State and Federal governments included $153.9 mllion for

operations, or 40.3 percent of total governnmental revenue. As the Statenent of Activities shows, the
majority of the intergovernnmental revenues are grants and subsidies to provide health and human servi ces.
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COUNTY OF SUW T, CH O

MANAGEMENT S DI SCUSSI ON AND ANALYSI S

BUSI NESS- TYPE ACTI VI TI ES

Busi ness—type activities increased the County’'s net assets by $2.2 mllion during the year 2004

revenue source was charges for services of $27.2 nillion or

Revenues
Pr ogr am Revenues
Charges for Services

Operating Grants and Contri butions
Capital Grants and Contributions

Total Program Revenues

General Revenues

Property and Lodgi ng Taxes
Sal es Tax

O her Taxes

Sal e of Capital Assets
Unrestricted Contributions
I nvest nent Ear ni ngs

O her

Total General Revenues

Total Revenues

Pr ogr am Expenses
General Governmnent:
Legi sl ati ve and Executive
Judi ci al
Public Safety
Public Wrks
Heal t h
Economi ¢ Devel opnent
Hunman Servi ces
Recreation
I nt ergover nment a
Ct her
Interest and Fiscal Charges
Wat er
Sewer
Total Expenses

Change in Net Assets
Bef ore Loss and Transfers

Transfers

Change in Net Assets

Net Assets January 1, 2004 (Restated)

Net Assets Decenber 31, 2004

County of Summit, Chio -

The maj or
70. 3 percent of total revenues
Changes in Net Assets
(i n thousands)
Gover nnent al Busi ness-type
Activities Activities Tot a
2004 2003 2004 2003 2004 2003
$ 44,815 $ 42,497 $ 27,154 $ 27,481 $ 71,969 $ 69,6978
153, 916 142,734 153, 916 142,734
53 1,746 10, 491 8, 627 10, 544 10, 373
198, 784 186, 977 37, 645 36, 108 236, 429 223, 085
101, 855 127, 382 101, 855 127, 382
35, 482 34,129 35, 482 34,129
13, 656 12,571 13, 656 12,571
4 21 4 21
28,532 11, 013 28,532 11, 013
3,253 4,040 477 47 3,730 4,087
500 2,534 497 806 997 3, 340
183, 278 191, 669 978 874 184, 256 192, 543
382, 062 378, 646 38, 623 36, 982 420, 685 415, 628
34, 657 32,420 34, 657 32,420
28, 754 25,074 28, 754 25,074
68, 866 64, 662 68, 866 64, 662
11, 110 13, 752 11, 110 13,752
112, 318 108, 678 112, 318 108, 678
4,511 3,537 4,511 3,537
117, 806 114,136 117, 806 114,136
5, 475 4,399 5, 475 4, 399
311 292 311 292
2,874 4,667 2,874 4,667
4,053 5,042 4,053 5,042
1,991 1,239 1,991 1,239
34, 362 35, 883 34, 362 35, 883
390, 735 376, 659 36, 353 37,122 427,088 413,781
(8,673) 1,987 2,270 (140) (6,403) 1, 847
90 91 (90) (91)
$ (8,583 $ 2,078 $ 2,180 $ (231) $ (6,403) $ 1,847
358, 352 356, 274 149, 357 149, 588 507, 709 505, 862
$ 349,769 $ 358,352 $ 151,537 $ 149,357 $ 501,306 $ 507, 709
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COUNTY OF SUW T, CH O
MANAGEMENT S DI SCUSSI ON AND ANALYSI S

FI NANCI AL ANALYSI S OF THE GOVERNMENT' S FUNDS
As di scussed previously, the County uses fund accounting to ensure and denpnstrate conpliance with finance
rel ated | egal requirenents.

Gover nnent al Funds: The focus of the County’s governnental funds is to provide information on near-term
inflows, outflows, and bal ances of spendabl e resources. Such information is useful in assessing the County’'s
financing requirenents. |In particular, unreserved fund bal ance nay serve as a useful measure of a County’s
net resources available for spending at the end of the year.

As of the end of the current year, the County’'s governnental funds reported conbined endi ng bal ances of
$177.9 mllion, a decrease of $25.5 nillion in conparison with the prior year. Approximtely 76.6 percent of
this total ampunt ($136.3 million) constitutes unreserved fund bal ance, which is available for appropriation
at the County’'s discretion within certain |legal constraints and purpose restrictions. The remainder of the
fund bal ance is reserved to indicate that it is not available for new spending because it has al ready been
commtted 1) to liquidate contracts and purchase orders of the prior period ($36.2 mllion), 2) to pay debt
service ($3.9 million), or 3) for a variety of other restricted purposes ($1.6 nillion). Wile the bulk of
the governnmental fund bal ances are not reserved in the governnmental fund statements, they lead to restricted
net assets on the Statenent of Net Assets, due to their being restricted for use for a particular purpose
mandat ed by the source of the resources, such as the State or federal governnent or the tax |evy.

The General Fund is the chief operating fund of the County. The fund bal ance of the County’s General Fund
decreased $2.2 nillion during the current year to $72.4 million. The unreserved fund bal ance of the General
Fund was $64 million. As a neasure of the General Fund's liquidity, it may be useful to conpare both
unreserved fund balance and total fund balance to total fund expenditures. Unreserved fund bal ance
represents 61.2 percent of total General Fund expenditures, while total fund bal ance represents 69.2 percent
of that same anpunt. Key factors for this decrease includes but is not limted to increased sales tax
revenues, increased property transfer taxes, and increased expenditures for Judicial and Public Safety from
prior year.

Transfers fromthe General Fund to other governnmental funds, anounted to $6.4 mllion and are discussed |ater
in this analysis.

Job and Fanily Services fund bal ance increased by $2.4 million. This is due to decreases in expenditures in
the workforce devel opnent program and workforce investnment act program |Increases in grant funding hel ped
decrease the deficit fund bal ance.

Chil dren Services Board fund bal ance decreased by $7.8 nmillion. This decrease is due to a $5.3 increase in
sal aries and benefits due to the strike in 2003. A $5.5 nmillion increase in contract expense for paid
pl acenent of children, which was offset, by an increase in charges for services of $2.2 for the fees for
pl acing the children.

The Mental Retardation Board fund bal ance increased by $.2 million. This is due largely to increases in
federal and state nonies and decreased expenditures.

The Debt Service Fund has a total fund balance of $3.6 mllion, all of which is unrestricted. The net
increase in the fund bal ance during the current year in the Debt Service Fund was $.9 mllion. This is due
to reduced interest and fiscal charges incurred with the issuance of $40.3 mllion in new bonds for the
def easance of $37.7 million in bonds.

Ent er pri se Funds: The County’'s proprietary funds provide the same type of information found in the
government -wi de financial statements for business-type activities, but in nore detail.

Unrestricted net assets for Water Revenue ($3.8 nillion) and Sewer Revenue ($10.5 nillion) Funds at the end
of the year amounted to $14.3 million. The increase of net assets ($2.2 nmillion) was due largely to
reduction of expenditures ($2 nillion) fromflood damage in prior year. The County was declared a national
di saster area in 2003 due to flooding.

GENERAL FUND BUDGETARY HI GHLI GHTS

The County’s budgeting process is prescribed by the Chio Revised Code. Essentially, the budget is the
County’'s appropriations, which are restricted by the ambunts of anticipated revenues certified by the Budget
Conmi ssion in accordance with Chio Revised Code. Therefore, the County's plans or desires cannot be totally
reflected in the original budget. If budgeted revenues are adjusted due to actual activity then the
appropriations can be adjusted, accordingly. Al elected officials worked closely with the County Council to
reduce, maintain, or hold down increases in departnental expenditures.

During the year, there was a $10.8 nillion increase in appropriations between the original and final budget.
Foll owi ng are the mmin conponents of the increase:

$1.6 million supplemental appropriations in CGeneral Covernnent - Legislative and Executive, in the
departments of; Physical Plants, Board of Elections and Fiscal Ofice.

$1.2 million supplenmental appropriations in General Government — Judicial, in Common Pleas Court,
Juvenile Court and Cerk of Courts.

$3 million supplenmental appropriations in Public Safety, for the Sheriffs’ General and Jail
operations and policing rotary services.

$4.6 million supplenmental appropriations in Human Services for subsidies and shared revenues.
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COUNTY OF SUW T, CH O
MANAGEMENT S DI SCUSSI ON AND ANALYSI S

These increases were possible because of additional revenues fromsales tax ($1 million), additional fees
collected ($1.8 million), increase in intergovernmental revenues of $.2 mllion and other revenue increases
of approximately $.5 million. These increases along with the addition of approximately $7.5 mllion prior
year commtnents not included in the original budget are the primary sources for the increases in
appropriations.

CAPI TAL ASSET AND DEBT ADM NI STRATI ON

Capital Assets: The County’s investnent in capital assets, for its governnmental and business type activities
as of Decenber 31, 2004, ampunts to $465.1 mllion (net of accumulated depreciation). The investnent in
capital assets includes |land, buildings, building inprovenents, machinery and equi prent, sewer/water |ines,
and infrastructure. The total increase in the County’'s investnent in capital assets for the fiscal year was
4.6 percent (a 9.1 percent increase in governmental activities and a .2 percent increase for business-type
activities).
County of Summit, Chio - Capital Assets*
(in thousands)

Gover nnent al Busi ness-type Tot al
2004 2003 2004 2003 2004 2003

Land $ 7,614 % 7,925 $ 826 $ 826 $ 8,440 $ 8,751
Construction in Process 22,154 22,394 3,169 1, 977 25,323 24,371
Bui | di ngs and Bui |l di ng
| nprovenent s 122, 806 105, 469 31, 255 32,833 154, 061 138, 302
Land | nprovenents 797 864 797 864
Machi nery and Equi pnent 15, 530 14, 316 11, 413 12, 680 26, 943 26, 996
Punp Stations 9, 255 9, 755 9, 255 9, 755
Treatment Pl ants 2,064 2,202 2,064 2,202
Sewer /WAt er Lines 164, 695 162, 056 164, 695 162, 056
Infrastructure 73, 352 71, 109 73, 352 71, 109
I nt angi bl es 149 126 149 126

Tot al $ 242,402 $ 222,203 $ 222,677 $ 222,329 $ 465,079 $ 444,532

*Net of accunul ated depreci ation.

Maj or capital asset events during the current fiscal year included the follow ng:

Construction conpleted on the Juvenile Court expansion project.

Conti nued construction on the Donmestic Relations Court expansion project; construction in progress as
of the close of the fiscal year had reached $12.8 million.

Construction conpleted on the Chio Building Fagade Renovation project.

Continued construction on various sewer lines, plant/facility inprovenents and expansions, and
wast ewat er treatnent studies; construction in progress as of the close of the fiscal year had reached
$3.2 million.

Addi tional information on the County's capital assets can be found in Note 11 of the Notes to Financial
St at enent s.

Long-term Debt: At the end of the current fiscal year, the County had total bonded debt outstanding of $146
mllion, net of the outstanding premium O this anmpbunt, $82.6 nillion conprises debt backed by the full
faith and credit of the County and $63.4 nmillion is special assessment debt for which the County is liable in
the event of default by the property owner subject to the assessnent. The County’s |ong-term bonded debt
decreased $7.3 million (4.7 percent) during the current fiscal year.

County of Summit, Chio - Long-term Debt
(i n thousands)

Gover nnent al Busi ness-type
Activities Activities Tot al
2004 2003 2004 2003 2004 2003
General Obligation Bonds $ 82,590 $ 87,705 $ 60,910 $ 63,210 $ 143,500 $ 150,915
Capi tal Appreciation Bonds 2,159 2,123 2,492 2, 356 4,651 4,479
Tax Anticipation Notes 8, 400 10, 980 8, 400 10, 980
O.D.D. Loans 29 29 29 29
O P.WC. Loans 688 750 688 750
O WD. A Loans 22,387 24,698 22,387 24,698
Tot al $ 93,149 $ 100,808 $ 86,506 $ 91,043 $ 179,655 $ 191,851
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COUNTY OF SUW T, CH O
MANAGEMENT S DI SCUSSI ON AND ANALYSI S

The County’s outstandi ng uni nsured general obligation bonds are currently rated “AAA* by Standard & Poor’s
Rating Services, “Aaa” by Mody's Investors Service, and “AAA” by Fitch Ratings. Certain of the County’'s
general obligation bonds are insured by AMBAC Indemity Corporation, MBI A Insurance Corporation, and
Fi nanci al Quaranty Insurance Conpany (FG C). Al of those insured general obligation bonds are rated “Aaa”
by Mody's and “AAA" by Standard & Poor’s. The bonds insured by FAC are also rated “AAA” by Fitch. State
statute limts the total amount of debt a governnment entity nay issue. The current debt linmtation for the
County is $223.7 million, which is significantly higher than the County’s outstanding net debt.

In addition to the bonded debt, the County’'s other long-termobligations include conpensated absences, clains
and judgnents, and capital |eases. Additional information on the County's |long-term debt can be found in
Note 17 of this report. Notes 15 and 16 di scuss capital |eases and conpensated absences.

Interest and fiscal charges ambunted to 1.0 percent of the total expenses for governnental activities.
ECONOM C FACTORS AND NEXT YEAR S BUDGETS AND RATES

The unenpl oynent rate for the County is currently 6.1 percent, which increased froma rate of 5.7 percent a
year ago. This rate is the same as the State's average unenpl oynent rate of 6.1 percent and conparable to
the national average of 5.5 percent.

Inflationary trends in the region conpare favorably to national indices.

Al of these factors were considered in preparing the County’'s budget for 2005. At the end of the fiscal
year 2004, unreserved fund balance in the General Fund decreased to $64.0 nillion.

COVPONENT UNI T — EDW N SHAW HOSPI TAL
The component unit is included in the County's reporting entity because of the significance of its financial

relationship with the County. Additional information for the discretely presented conponent unit maybe
obtained at entity's adnministrative offices: Edwin Shaw Hospital, 1621 Flickinger Road, Akron, Chio, 44312.

REQUESTS FOR | NFORVATI ON
This financial report is designed to provide a general overview of the County's finances for all those with
an interest inits finances and to show the County’'s accountability for the nobney it receives. Questions

concerning any of the information provided in this report or requests for additional information should be
addressed to the County of Summit Fiscal Ofice, 175 South Main Street — Suite 400, Akron, Chio 44308-1354.
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County of Summit, Ohio

Statement of Net Assets

December 31, 2004

Assets
Equity in Pooled Cash and Investments
Cash and Cash Equivalents - Segregated Accounts
Receivables (Net of Allowance for Uncollectibles)
Taxes
Accounts
Special Assessments
Accrued Interest
Loans
Internal Balances
Due From Other Governments
Material and Supplies Inventory
Prepaid Items
Deferred Charges
Nondepreciable Capital Assets
Depreciable Capital Assets, Net
Total Assets

Liabilities
Accounts Payable
Accrued Salaries and Wages Payable
Deferred Revenue
Contract Retainage Payable
Matured Bonds and Interest Payable
Accrued Interest Payable
Due To Other Governments
Deposits Held and Due To Others
Insurance Claims Payable
Long-term Liabilities:

Due Within One Y ear

DueIn More Than One Y ear

Total Liabilities

Net Assets
Invested in Capital Assets, Net of Related Debt
Restricted for:

Capital Projects

Debt Service

Roads and Bridges

Health and Human Services

Grant Programs

Other Purposes
Unrestricted

Total Net Assets

Primary Government Component Unit
Governmental Business-type Edwin Shaw
Activities Activities Tota Hospital
$183,430,569 $8,548,249  $191,978,818 $ -
4,780,958 182,178 4,963,136 1,150,273
132,626,561 - 132,626,561 -
1,375,464 7,168,781 8,544,245 5,574,773
402,184 2,500,963 2,903,147 -
1,008,049 22,974 1,031,023 -
5,595,233 - 5,595,233 -
78,615 (78,615) - -
47,347,666 41,440 47,389,106 -
1,438,657 173,796 1,612,453 51,424
661,028 83,889 744,917 293,327
638,786 533,408 1,172,194 -
29,767,690 3,993,761 33,761,451 46,134
212,634,609 218,683,522 431,318,131 5,261,234
621,786,069 241,854,346 863,640,415 12,377,165
16,305,873 412,394 16,718,267 3,913,560
2,896,850 129,483 3,026,333 538,054
106,372,984 - 106,372,984 -
436,266 - 436,266 -
18,863 5,586 24,449 -
355,765 260,956 616,721 -
4,045,000 1,668,379 5,713,379 577,316
95,396 158,523 253,919 -
10,061,509 - 10,061,509 -
16,187,028 4,085,029 20,272,057 1,748,577
115,241,232 83,597,041 198,838,273 -
272,016,766 90,317,391 362,334,157 6,777,507
173,820,320 137,181,781 311,002,101 5,051,870
13,478,215 - 13,478,215 -
4,446,792 - 4,446,792 -
7,503,106 - 7,503,106 -
18,766,418 - 18,766,418 -
8,207,177 - 8,207,177 -
9,672,813 - 9,672,813 7,455
113,874,464 14,355,174 128,229,638 540,333
$349,769,305  $151,536,955  $501,306,260 $ 5,599,658

The Notesto Financial Statements are an integral part of this statement.
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County of Summit, Ohio

Statement of Activities
For the Year Ended December 31, 2004

Primary Government

Governmental Activities:

General Government:
Legidative and Executive
Judicial

Public Safety

Public Works

Health

Economic Development

Human Services

Recreation

Intergovernmental

Other

Interest and Fiscal Charges
Total Governmental Activities

Business-type Activities:
Water
Sewer
Total Business-type Activities

Total - Primary Government

Component Unit
Edwin Shaw Hospital

Program Revenues

Net (Expense) Revenue and Changes in Net Assets

Operating Grants, Primary Government Component Unit
Charges for and Capital Grants Governmental Business-type Edwin Shaw
Expenses Services and Sales Contributions and Contributions Activities Activities Total Hospital
$ 34657433 $ 16137515 $ 1519874 $ - $ (17,000,044) $ (17,000,044)
28,753,662 5,471,551 2,017,601 - (21,264,510) (21,264,510)
68,866,348 12,383,608 11,427,439 - (45,055,301) (45,055,301)
11,110,042 225,715 12,125,915 - 1,241,588 1,241,588
112,317,834 1,399,033 56,638,579 52,500 (54,227,722) (54,227,722)
4,510,676 89,499 2,716,715 - (1,704,462) (1,704,462)
117,806,041 8,185,789 67,469,416 - (42,150,836) (42,150,836)
5,474,925 921,974 - - (4,552,951) (4,552,951)
311,153 - - - (311,153) (311,153)
2,873,757 - - - (2,873,757) (2,873,757)
4,053,115 - - - (4,053,115) (4,053,115)
390,734,986 44,814,684 153,915,539 52,500 (191,952,263) (191,952,263)
1,990,843 697,316 - - - $ (1,293527) (1,293,527)
34,362,172 26,456,458 - 10,491,162 - 2,585,448 2,585,448
36,353,015 27,153,774 - 10,491,162 - 1,291,921 1,291,921
$ 427088001 $ 71968458 $ 153915539 $ 10,543,662 (191,952,263) 1,291,921 (190,660,342)
$ 27119099 $ 2456519 $ - 3 - $  (2,553,903)
General Revenues
Property Taxes Levied for:
Genera Purposes 94,876,377 - 94,876,377 -
Debt Service 6,979,067 - 6,979,067 -
Sales Tax Levied for:
General Purposes 35,481,710 - 35,481,710 -
Other Taxes 13,656,310 - 13,656,310 -
Sale of Capital Asset - 3,915 3,915 -
Unrestricted Contributions 28,531,940 - 28,531,940 -
Investment Earnings 3,253,456 476,878 3,730,334 14,418
Miscellaneous 499,912 497,208 997,120 274,189
Total General Revenues 183,278,772 978,001 184,256,773 288,607
Transfers 90,111 (90,111) - -
Total General Revenues and Transfers 183,368,883 887,890 184,256,773 288,607
Change in Net Assets (8,583,380) 2,179,811 (6,403,569) (2,265,296)
Net Assets Beginning of Year - Restated (See Note 3 & 25) 358,352,685 149,357,144 507,709,829 7,864,954
Net Assets End of Year $ 349,769,305 $ 151536955 $ 501,306,260 $ 5,599,658

The Notes to Financia Statements are an integral part of this statement.
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County of Summit, Ohio

Balance Sheet
Governmental Funds
December 31, 2004

Assets

Equity in Pooled Cash and Investments
Cash and Cash Equivalents - Segregated Accounts
Receivables (Net of Allowance for Uncollectibles)

Taxes
Accounts

Specid Assessments

Accrued Interest
Loans

Due From Other Funds
Due From Other Governments
Material and Supplies Inventory

Prepaid Items
Total Assets

Liabilities

Accounts Payable

Accrued Salaries and Wages Payable

Deferred Revenue

Contract Retainage Payable
Matured Bonds and Interest Payable
Compensated Absences
Due To Other Funds
Due To Other Governments
Deposits Held and Due To Others
Insurance Claims Payable

Total Liabilities

Fund Balances

Reserved for Encumbrances
Reserved for Prepaid Items
Reserved for Material & Supplies
Reserved for Loans

Unreserved (Deficit):

Genera

Specia Revenue
Debt Service
Capital Projects

Total Fund Balances

Total Liabilities and Fund Balances

Children Alcohol, Drug Board of
Job & Services Addiction & Mental

Generd Family Services Board Mental Health Retardation

$ 63118061 $ - $ 41319614 $ 12,312,348  $ 8,130,341
804,177 14,254 2,103,569 - 50
27,021,003 - 24,526,167 20,270,657 37,312,390
146,569 1,034 19,854 539 62,107
965,147 - 16,196 - -
2,105,819 63,063 26,503 125 5,504
10,982,867 4,189,874 5,017,114 5,399,088 6,753,975
90,693 28,665 - - 163,506

379,130 1,804 159,936 19,022 59,783

$ 105613466 $ 4298694 $ 73188953 $ 38,001,779 $ 52,487,656
$ 1,428370 $ 2564259 % 2,831,290 $ 5,059,178 $ 1,231,767
1,119,841 282,967 383,026 27,562 629,402
28,949,691 148,645 25,887,119 23,250,149 40,212,085
91,878 394 18,100 - 97,205
1,295,910 2,103,456 383,314 26,019 1,138,321
374,562 149,515 30,828 939,437 43,235
- - - - 1,502
- - - - 790,100
33,260,252 5,249,236 29,533,677 29,302,345 44,143,617
8,236,290 10,502,165 1,780,292 35,538 617,271

- - 159,936 - -
90,693 28,665 - - 163,506
64,026,231 - - -
- (11,481,372) 41,715,048 8,663,896 7,563,262
72,353,214 (950,542) 43,655,276 8,699,434 8,344,039
$ 105613466 $ 4298694 $ 73188953 $ 38,001,779 $ 52,487,656

The Notes to Financial Statements are an integral part of this statement.



County of Summit, Ohio

Reconciliation of Total Governmental Fund Balances to
Net Assets of Governmental Activities
December 31, 2004

Other Tota
Debt Governmental Governmental
Service Funds Funds

$ 2,687,000 $ 37,938,027 $ 165,505,398
- 1,858,908 4,780,958
17,962,117 5,534,227 132,626,561
862,999 104,325 1,197,427
- 402,184 402,184
- 17,257 998,600
- 5,595,233 5,595,233
444,295 1,459,267 4,104,576
6,671,629 7,547,508 46,562,055
- 1,149,724 1,432,588
- 36,002 655,677
$ 28,628,047 $ 61,642,662 $ 363,861,257
$ -8 3008563 $ 16,123,427
- 428,278 2,871,076
24,979,039 13,441,216 156,867,944
- 436,266 436,266
18,863 - 18,863
- - 207,577
- 1,882,572 6,829,592
- 152,934 1,690,511
- 93,894 95,396
- - 790,100
24,997,902 19,443,723 185,930,752
- 14,990,476 36,162,032
- - 159,936
- 1,149,724 1,432,588
- 3,883,903 3,883,903
- - 64,026,231
10,306,609 56,767,443
3,630,145 - 3,630,145
- 11,868,227 11,868,227
3,630,145 42,198,939 177,930,505
$ 28,628,047 $ 61,642,662 $ 363,861,257

Total Governmental Funds Balances $ 177,930,505

Amounts reported for governmental activitiesin the
statement of net assets are different because

Capital assets used in governmental activities are not financial
resources and therefore are not reported in the funds 242,402,296

Other long-term assets are not available to pay for current-
period expenditures and therefore are deferred in the funds:

Property Taxes 16,508,159
Sales and Use Tax 3,562,616
Chargesfor Services 2,360,880
Intergovernmental 26,920,707
Specid Assessment 402,184
Investment Income 307,137
Other 433,279
Interest and Fiscal Charges 638,786
Tota 51,133,748

Aninterna service fund is used by management to charge
the costs of insurance to individual funds. The assets and
liabilities of theinternal service fund areincluded in
governmental activitiesin the statement of net assets.

Net Assets of Internal Service Funds 9,718,749
Capital Assets (included above) (51,298)
Compensated Absences (included below) 224,280
Capita Leases (included below) 18,232
Internal Balance Elimination (30,759)
Total 9,879,204

Long-term liabilities, including bonds payable and accrued
interest payable, are not due and payable in the current
period and therefore are not reported in the funds:

Accrued Interest Payable (355,765)
Compensated Absences (21,479,085)
Claims and Judgements (11,476,350)
Capital Leases (1,190,489)
Genera Obligation Debt (94,247,845)
State [nfrastructure Bank Loans (2,826,914)

Total (131,576,448)

Net Assets of Governmental Activities $ 349,769,305
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County of Summit, Ohio

Statement of Revenues, Expenditures and Changesin Fund Balances
Governmental Funds
For the Year Ended December 31, 2004

Revenues
Taxes:.

Property

Sdesand Use

Other
Licenses and Permits
Chargesfor Services
Fines and Forfeitures
Intergovernmental
Specia Assessments
Investment Income
Other

Total Revenues

Expenditures

Genera Government:
Legidative and Executive
Judicial

Public Safety

Public Works

Health

Economic Development

Human Services

Recregtion

Intergovernmental

Other

Capital Outlay

Debt Service:
Principa Retirement
Interest and Fiscal Charges

Total Expenditures

Excess (Deficiency) of Revenues
Over (Under) Expenditures

Other Financing Sour ces (Uses)
Saleof Capital Assets

Capital Lease

Bond Issued

Note Issued

Premium on Debt | ssuance

Payment to Refunded Bond Escrow Account

Transfersin
Transfers Out

Total Other Financing Sources (Uses)

Net Change in Fund Balances

Fund Balances (Deficit) Beginning of Year

Fund Balances (Deficit) End of Year

Children Alcohal, Drug Board of
Job & Services Addiction & Mental

Genera Family Services Board Mental Health Retardation
$ 15629440 $ - $ 21,749,085 $ 18613455 $ 34,200,325
35,261,093 - - - -
9,529,495 - - R _
38,749 - - - -
22,355,609 58,340 7,259,846 - 580,041
770,403 132,924 - - -
17,592,104 46,485,158 14,888,731 38,695,509 17,395,867
3,297,311 225 33,931 - 433
3,687,722 1,873,654 466,658 1,061,021 158,041
108,161,926 48,550,301 44,398,251 58,369,985 52,334,707
22,576,511 - - - -
25,039,415 - - - -
51,933,776 - - - -
834,221 - - 57,744,233 51,925,960
86 - - - -
2,189,146 50,815,965 53,420,046 - -
311,153 - - - -
1,671,163 - - - -
- - - - 40,920
104,555,471 50,815,965 53,420,046 57,744,233 51,966,880
3,606,455 (2,265,664) (9,021,795) 625,752 367,827
4,430 600 - - R
107,533 - - - -
404,088 5,451,612 - - -
(6,369,624) (803,750) (21,280) (99,374) (124,380)
(5,853,573) 4,648,462 (21,280) (99,374) (124,380)
(2,247,118) 2,382,798 (9,043,075) 526,378 243,447
74,600,332 (3,333,340) 52,698,351 8,173,056 8,100,592
$ 72353214 $ (950542) $ 43655276 $ 8699434 $ 8,344,039

The Notes to Financial Statements are an integral part of this statement.



County of Summit, Ohio

Reconciliation of the Statement of Revenues, Expenditures and Changes
in Fund Balances Governmental Fundsto the Statement of Activities

For the Year Ended December 31, 2004

Other Total
Debt Governmental Governmental

Service Funds Funds
$ 10344288 % 4518436 $ 105,055,029
- - 35,261,093
- 4,126,815 13,656,310
- 338,066 376,815
- 12,088,099 42,341,935
- 865,257 1,768,584
1,485,079 37,658,140 174,200,588
- 184,877 184,877
- 176,123 3,508,023
1,188,948 4,744,475 13,180,519
13,018,315 64,700,288 389,533,773
- 10,076,731 32,653,242
- 2,516,580 27,555,995
- 12,255,884 64,189,660
- 16,913,950 16,913,950
- 596,240 111,100,654
- 2,716,116 2,716,202
- 10,729,152 117,154,309
- 5,474,925 5,474,925
- - 311,153
- - 1,671,163
- 25,478,406 25,478,406
9,651,946 - 9,651,946
4,184,207 39,696 4,264,823
13,836,153 86,797,680 419,136,428
(817,838) (22,097,392) (29,602,655)
- 548,352 553,382
- - 107,533
25,652,000 - 25,652,000
- 2,786,914 2,786,914
2,263,399 - 2,263,399
(27,340,006) - (27,340,006)
1,100,230 855,111 7,811,041
- (318,925) (7,737,333)
1,675,623 3,871,452 4,096,930
857,785 (18,225,940) (25,505,725)
2,772,360 60,424,880 203,436,231
$ 3,630,145 $ 42,198940 $ 177,930,506

Net Changein Fund Balances - Total Governmental Funds

Amounts reported for governmental activitiesin the
statement of activities are different because

Governmental funds report capital outlays as expenditures.
However, in the statement of activities, the cost of those
assetsis allocated over their estimated useful lives as
depreciation expense. Thisisthe amount by which capital
outlays exceeded depreciation in the current period.

Capital Assets 33,265,451
Current Y ear Depreciation (13,066,361)
Total

Revenues in the statement of activitiesthat do not provide
current financial resources are not reported as revenues
inthe funds.

Property Taxes (3,583,041)
Sales and Use Tax 220,617
Chargesfor Services (400,538)
Intergovernmental (5,284,573)
Specia Assessments 152,408
Investment Income (311,056)

Other (16,651)

Capita Lease Proceeds (107,533)
Generd Obligation Bond Proceeds (25,652,000)
State Infrastructure Bank Loans (2,786,914)
Premium on Debt | ssuance (2,263,399)

Total

Repayment of long-term debt principal is an expenditurein the
governmental funds, but the repayment reduces long-term
liailities in the statement of net assets.

Bond Principal Payments 9,651,946

Refunded Bond Escrow Agent 27,340,006

Capital Lease Principal Payments 500,203
Total

In the statement of activities, interest is accrued on
outstanding bonds, whereas in governmental funds, an
interest expenditure is reported when due.

Some expenses reported in the statement of activities, do not
require the use of current financial resources and therefore
are not reported as expenditures in governmenta funds.

Issuance Costs 261,414

Compensated Absences (1,709,049)

Claims and Judgements (23,274)
Total

Theinternal service funds used by management to charge the
the costs of insurance and workers compensation to
individual funds are not reported in the entity-wide
statement of activities. Governmental fund expenditures
and related internal service fund revenues are eliminated.

Change in Net Assets of Governmental Activities

25

$ (25,505,725)

20,199,090

(40,032,680)

37,492,155

(47,672)

(1,470,909)

782,361
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County of Summit, Ohio

Statement of Revenues, Expenditures and Changes In Fund Balance

Budget (Non-GAAP Basis) and Actual

General Fund

For the Year Ended December 31, 2004

Revenues
Taxes:.

Property

Salesand Use

Other
Licenses and Permits
Charges for Services
Fines and Forefeitures
Intergovernmental
Investment Income
Other

Total Revenue

Expenditures

Genera Government:
Legidative and Executive
Judicial

Public Safety

Public Works

Health

Economic Development

Human Services

Other
Total Expenditures

Excess (Deficiency) of Revenues
Over (Under) Expenditures

Other Financing Sources (Uses):
TransfersIn
Transfers Out
Other Financing Sources

Total Other Financing Sources (Uses)

Excess (Deficiency) of Revenues and Other Financing

Sources Over Expenditures and Other (Uses)

Fund Balance - Beginning

Prior Y ear Encumbrance Appropriations

Fund Balance - Ending

Budgeted Amounts Variance With
Original Final Actua Final Budget
$18,410,201 18,010,000 17,776,641 $ (233,359)
33,400,000 34,400,000 35,238,791 838,791
9,137,326 7,800,000 9,438,280 1,638,280
35,631 43,000 38,573 (4,427)
22,565,348 24,175,350 22,178,663 (1,996,687)
716,576 640,000 744,579 104,579
14,512,338 14,380,058 14,679,146 299,088
4,761,581 7,456,200 4,850,986 (2,605,214)
4,493,441 4,305,100 4,997,893 692,793
108,032,442 111,209,708 109,943,552 (1,266,156)
26,177,800 27,744,087 26,811,284 932,803
24,908,100 26,105,246 25,894,778 210,468
52,638,700 55,677,644 55,248,958 428,686
200,000 140,000 137,199 2,801
360,000 894,159 893,288 871
- 247 247 -
7,547,000 12,124,103 12,114,674 9,429
2,114,700 2,066,706 1,974,259 92,447
113,946,300 124,752,192 123,074,687 1,677,505
(5,913,858) (13,542,484) (13,131,135) 411,349
- - 404,088 404,088
- (365,159) (365,159) -
708,658 1,102,000 733,394 (368,606)
708,658 736,841 772,323 35,482
(5,205,200) (12,805,643) (12,358,812) 446,831
31,453,007 31,453,007 31,453,007
9,790,332 9,790,332 9,790,332
$ 36,038,139 28,437,696 28,884,527 $ 446,831

The Notesto Financia Statements are an integral part of this statement.
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County of Summit, Ohio

Statement of Revenues, Expenditures and Changes In Fund Balance
Budget (Non-GAAP Basis) and Actual
Job & Family Services Fund
For the Year Ended December 31, 2004

Budgeted Amounts Variance With
Original Final Actua Final Budget

Revenues
Charges for Services $ 7,700 $ 7,756 $ 2,740 $ (5,016)
Fines and Forefeitures 223,300 224,917 133,071 (91,846)
Intergovernmental 73,496,500 74,028,807 44,305,857 (29,722,950)
Other 885,500 891,913 532,487 (359,426)

Total Revenue 74,613,000 75,153,393 44 974,155 (30,179,238)
Expenditures
Human Services 63,626,751 74,827,854 62,223,864 12,603,990

Total Expenditures 63,626,751 74,827,854 62,223,864 12,603,990
Excess (Deficiency) of Revenues

Over (Under) Expenditures 10,986,249 325,539 (17,249,709) (17,575,248)
Other Financing Sources (Uses):
Other Financing Sources 2,387,000 2,404,288 1,438,239 (966,049)
Excess (Deficiency) of Revenues and Other Financing

Sources Over Expenditures and Other (Uses) 13,373,249 2,729,827 (15,811,470) (18,541,297)
Fund (Deficit) - Beginning (10,445,171) (10,445,171) (10,445,171)
Prior Y ear Encumbrance Appropriations 11,125,793 11,125,793 11,125,793
Fund Balance (Deficit) - Ending $ 14,053,871 $ 3,410,449 $ (15,130,848) $ (18,541,297)

The Notesto Financial Statements are an integral part of this statement.
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Statement of Revenues, Expenditures and Changes In Fund Balance

County of Summit, Ohio

Budget (Non-GAAP Basis) and Actual
Children Services Board Fund
For the Year Ended December 31, 2004

Revenues
Property Taxes
Charges For Services
Intergovernmental
Other

Total Revenue

Expenditures
Human Services

Total Expenditures

Excess (Deficiency) of Revenues
Over (Under) Expenditures

Fund Balance - Beginning
Prior Y ear Encumbrance Appropriations

Fund Balance - Ending

Budgeted Amounts Variance With
Original Final Actua Final Budget
$ 25462369 $ 25499954 $ 25235726 % (264,228)
5,630,586 5,630,586 6,451,821 821,235
13,218,379 13,561,471 15,314,401 1,752,930
433,864 433,864 497,701 63,837
44,745,198 45,125,875 47,499,649 2,373,774
39,824,007 58,379,657 56,312,416 2,067,241
39,824,007 58,379,657 56,312,416 2,067,241
4,921,191 (13,253,782) (8,812,767) 4,441,015
40,735,286 40,735,286 40,735,286
4,340,511 4,340,511 4,340,511
$ 49996988 $ 31,822,015 $ 36,263,030 $ 4,441,015

The Notes to Financial Statements are an integral part of this statement.
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County of Summit, Ohio

Statement of Revenues, Expenditures and Changes In Fund Balance
Budget (Non-GAAP Basis) and Actual
Alcohol, Drug Addiction & Mental Health Fund
For the Year Ended December 31, 2004

Budgeted Amounts Variance With
Original Final Actua Final Budget
Revenues
Property Taxes $ 21,025065 $ 20,894,075 $ 20,717,007 $ (177,068)
Intergovernmental 35,863,850 35,863,850 36,550,914 687,064
Other 1,033,115 1,033,115 1,052,272 19,157
Total Revenue 57,922,030 57,791,040 58,320,193 529,153
Expenditures
Health 57,871,676 66,738,598 66,255,254 483,344
Total Expenditures 57,871,676 66,738,598 66,255,254 483,344
Excess (Deficiency) of Revenues
Over (Under) Expenditures 50,354 (8,947,558) (7,935,061) 1,012,497
Fund Balance - Beginning 6,407,272 6,407,272 6,407,272
Prior Y ear Encumbrance Appropriations 6,812,938 6,812,938 6,812,938
Fund Balance - Ending $ 13270564 $ 4272652  $ 5285149  $ 1,012,497

The Notes to Financial Statements are an integral part of this statement.
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Statement of Revenues, Expenditures and Changes In Fund Balance

County of Summit, Ohio

Budget (Non-GAAP Basis) and Actual
Board of Mental Retardation Fund
For the Year Ended December 31, 2004

Revenues

Property Taxes

Charges for Services

Intergovernmental

Other

Investment Income
Total Revenue

Expenditures
Health
Total Expenditures

Excess (Deficiency) of Revenues
Over (Under) Expenditures

Other Financing Sources (Uses)
Transfersin
Transfers Out

Total Other Financing Sources (Uses)

Excess (Deficiency) of Revenues and Other Financing
Sources Over Expenditures and Other (Uses)

Fund Balance - Beginning
Prior Y ear Encumbrance Appropriations

Fund Balance - Ending

Budgeted Amounts Variance With
Original Final Actua Final Budget
$ 38750266 $ 38842808 $ 38444636 $ (398,172)
508,085 508,085 226,747 (281,338)
1,505,765 1,618,500 868,132 (750,368)
25,921,656 27,862,382 14,951,022 (12,911,360)
- - 432 432
66,685,772 68,831,775 54,490,969 (14,340,806)
60,090,910 63,302,782 59,107,516 4,195,266
60,090,910 63,302,782 59,107,516 4,195,266
6,594,862 5,528,993 (4,616,547) (10,145,540)
- - 3,152,000 3,152,000
(4,587,000) (4,587,000) (3,252,000) 1,335,000
(4,587,000) (4,587,000) (100,000) 4,487,000
2,007,862 941,993 (4,716,547) (5,658,540)
7,071,637 7,071,637 7,071,637
2,011,872 2,011,872 2,011,872
$ 11091371 $ 10025502 % 4,366,962 $ (5,658,540)

The Notes to Financial Statements are an integral part of this statement.
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County of Summit, Ohio

Statement of Net Assets

Proprietary Funds

December 31, 2004

Assets
Current Assets:

Equity in Pooled Cash and Cash Equivaents
Cash and Cash Equivalents - Segregated Accounts
Receivables (Net of Allowance for Uncollectibles)

Accounts

Special Assessments

Accrued Interest
Due From Other Funds
Due From Other Governments
Materia and Supplies Inventory
Prepaid Items

Total Current Assets

Noncurrent Assets:
Deferred Charges
Capital Assets:
Nondepreciable Capital Assets
Depreciable Capital Assets, Net
Total Noncurrent Assets
Total Assets

Liabilities
Current Liabilities:
Accounts Payable
Accrued Salaries and Wages Payable
Matured Bonds and Interest Payable
Accrued Interest Payable
Compensated Absences
Due To Other Funds
Due To Other Governments
Deposits Held and Due To Others
Insurance Claims Payable
Genera Obligation Bonds Payable
Capital Leases Payable
OWDA Loans Payable
OPWC Loans Payable
ODD Loans Payable
WPCLF Loans Payable

Total Current Liabilities

Long-term Liabilities:
Compensated Absences

Genera Obligation Bonds Payable
Capital Leases Payable

OWDA Loans Payable

OPWC Loans Payable

WPCLF Loans Payable

Total Long-term Liabilities
Total Liabilities

Net Assets

Invested in Capital Assets, Net of Related Debt

Unrestricted
Total Net Assets

Adjustment to reflect the consolidation of internal service fund activities related to

enterprise fund

Net assets of business-type activities

Governmental
Business-type Activities Activities
Water Sewer Internal Service
Revenue Revenue Tota Funds
$ 3910007 $ 4638242 $ 8548249 $ 17,925,172
5,389 176,789 182,178 -
156,842 7,011,939 7,168,781 178,037
46,734 2,454,229 2,500,963 -
2,227 20,747 22,974 9,449
300,000 1,029 301,029 2,719,992
B 41,440 41,440 -
6,069 167,727 173,796 6,069
- 83,889 83,889 5,351
4,427,268 14,596,031 19,023,299 20,844,070
- 533,408 533,408 -
202,205 3,791,556 3,993,761 -
6,665,666 212,017,856 218,683,522 51,298
6,867,871 216,342,820 223,210,691 51,298
11,295,139 230,938,851 242,233,990 20,895,368
14,582 397,812 412,394 182,445
8,503 120,980 129,483 25,774
128 5,458 5,586 -
553 260,403 260,956 -
128,816 155,064 283,880 61,668
8,126 419,811 427,937 29,767
128,254 1,522,591 1,650,845 1,424,712
- 158,523 158,523 -
- - - 9,271,409
52,439 2,691,797 2,744,236 -
- - - 10,450
29,360 901,356 930,716 -
- 62,500 62,500 -
- 29,458 29,458 -
- 34,239 34,239 -
370,761 6,759,992 7,130,753 11,006,225
339,672 408,885 748,557 162,612
111,329 58,732,465 58,843,794 -
- - - 7,782
424,134 21,032,282 21,456,416 -
- 625,000 625,000 -
- 1,923,274 1,923,274 -
875,135 82,721,906 83,597,041 170,394
1,245,896 89,481,898 90,727,794 11,176,619
6,250,609 130,931,172 137,181,781 22,144
3,798,634 10,525,781 14,324,415 9,696,605
$ 10,049,243 $ 141,456,953 151,506,196 $ 9,718,749
30,759

The Notes to Financial Statements are an integral part of this statement.

31

$ 151,536,955



County of Summit, Ohio

Statement of Revenues, Expenses and Changesin Fund Net Assets

Proprietary Funds

For the Year Ended December 31, 2004

Operating Revenues
Charges for Services
Other

Total Operating Revenues

Operating Expenses
Persona Services
Contractual Services
Materid and Supplies
Claims Expense
Depreciation
Other

Total Operating Expenses

Operating Income (Loss)

Non-Oper ating Revenues (Expenses)
Intergovernmental Revenue
Investment Income
Sde of Capital Assets
Interest and Fiscal Charges
(Loss) on Sale of Capital Assets
Total Non-Operating Revenues (Expenses)

Income (Loss) before Capital Contributions,and Transfers
Capital Contributions

Transfersin

Transfers Out

Changein Net Assets

Net Assets - Beginning (Restated See Note 3)

Net Assets - Ending

Adjustment to reflect the consolidation of internal service fund activities related to enterprise funds

Change in net assets of business-type activities (page 21)

Governmental
Business-type Activities Activities

Water Sewer Internal Service

Revenue Revenue Tota Funds
$ 697,316 $ 26,456,458 $ 27,153,774 $ 30,795,790
46 497,162 497,208 188,459
697,362 26,953,620 27,650,982 30,984,249
1,051,599 7,819,389 8,870,988 1,798,158
659,686 12,775,943 13,435,629 15,194,399
29,859 672,848 702,707 1,005,449
- - - 11,110,560
155,212 6,936,233 7,091,445 27,928
45,449 1,310,601 1,356,050 1,222,359
1,941,805 29,515,014 31,456,819 30,358,853
(1,244,443) (2,561,394) (3,805,837) 625,396
- 5,738,786 5,738,786 33,253
429 476,449 476,878 56,490
- 3,915 3,915 -
(48,411) (4,848,721) (4,897,132) (2,034)
(627) (11,680) (12,307) -
(48,609) 1,358,749 1,310,140 87,709
(1,293,052) (1,202,645) (2,495,697) 713,105
- 4,752,376 4,752,376 -
- - - 365,159
(21,627) (68,484) (90,111) (348,756)
(1,314,679) 3,481,247 2,166,568 729,508
11,363,922 137,975,706 8,989,241
$ 10,049,243  $ 141,456,953 $ 9,718,749

13,243
_$ 2179811

The Notesto Financia Statements are an integra part of this statement.
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County of Summit, Ohio

Statement of Cash Flows
Proprietary Funds
For the Year Ended December 31, 2004

Cash Flows from Operating Activities
Cash Receipts from Customers

Cash Receipts - Other

Cash Payments for Goods and Services
Cash Payments for Insurance Claims
Cash Payments to Employees

Net Cash Provided (Used) by Operating Activities

Cash Flows from Non-Capital Financing Activities

Cash Receipts from Intergovernmental
Cash Receipts - Donated

Interfund Loan

TransfersIn

Transfers Out

Net Cash Provided (Used) by Non-Capital
Financing Activities

Cash Flows from Capital and

Related Financing Activities

Cash Proceeds from Debt

Cash Proceeds from Sale of Capital Assets
Cash Receipts from Specia Assessments
Cash Payments for Capital Acquisitions
Cash Payments for Debt Retirement

Cash Payments for Interest Expense

Net Cash (Used) by Capital and Related
Financing Activities

Cash Flows from Investing Activities
Interest on Investments

Net Increase (Decrease) in Cash and Cash Equivalents

Cash and Cash Equivalents - Beginning

Cash and Cash Equivalents - End

Governmental
Business-type Activities Activities
Water Sewer Internal
Revenue Revenue Tota Service Funds

$ 635883 $ 25794908 $ 26430,791 $ 30,594,886
34 734,145 734,179 40,189
(666,440) (15,122,632) (15,789,072) (17,427,992)
- - - (11,521,544)
(597,656) (8,393,332) (8,990,988) (1,763,116)
(628,179) 3,013,089 2,384,910 (77,577)

- 5,738,786 5,738,786 -

- - - 33,253

(300,000) 300,000 - -

- - - 365,159
(21,627) (68,484) (90,111) (348,756)
(321,627) 5,970,302 5,648,675 49,656

- 5118 5118 -

- 3,915 3,915 -

49,260 320,293 369,553 -
(76,970) (1,776,763) (1,853,733) -
(159,353) (5,315,401) (5,474,754) (9,585)
(48,676) (5,098,696) (5,147,372) (2,034)
(235,739) (11,861,534) (12,097,273) (11,619)
642 14,303 14,945 50,272
(1,184,903) (2,863,840) (4,048,743) 10,732
5,100,299 7,678,871 12,779,170 17,914,440
$ 3915396 $ 4815031 $ 8730427 $ 17,925172
(continued)

Business-type Activities funds received approximately; $4.8 million of contributed assets. The County issued $14,678,000
in general obligation refunding bonds. See Note #17 for additional information.

The Notes to Financial Statements are an integral part of this statement.
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County of Summit, Ohio

Statement of Cash Flows
Proprietary Funds (Continued)
For the Year Ended December 31, 2004

Governmental
Business-type Activities Activities
Water Sewer Interna
Revenue Revenue Tota Service Funds
Reconciliation of Operating Income (L oss) to Net Cash
Provided (Used) by Operating Activities
Operating Income (L 0ss) $ (1,244443) $ (2561394 $ (3,805837) $ 625,396
Adjustments:
Depreciation 155,212 6,936,233 7,091,445 27,928
(Increase) Decrease in Assets:
Receivables (61,445) (597,753) (659,198) (141,794)
Due From Other Governments - (22,020) (22,020) -
Material and Supplies Inventory 1,639 (7,014) (5,375) 117,984
Other Operating Assets 40,483 (60,648) (20,165) (217,718)
Increase (Decrease) in Liabilities:
Accounts Payable 12,917 56,874 69,791 (115,965)
Accrued Salaries and Wages Payable (8,613) (150,650) (159,263) (19,646)
Compensated Absences 463,190 (414,985) 48,205 53,985
Due To Other Funds (634) (10,398) (11,032) (2,169)
Due To Other Governments 13,515 (350,703) (337,188) (120,782)
Deposits Held and Due to Others - 24,525 24,525 -
Insurance Claims Payable (292,011)
Other Operating Liabilities - 171,022 171,022 7,215
Net Cash Provided (Used) by Operating Activities $ (628,179) $ 3,013,089 $ 2384910 $ (77,577)
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County of Summit, Ohio

Statement of Fiduciary Net Assets
Fiduciary Funds
December 31, 2004

Assets
Equity in Pooled Cash and Cash Equivalents
Cash and Cash Equivalents - Segregated Accounts
Receivables (Net of Allowance for Uncollectibles)
Taxes
Accounts
Due From Other Funds
Due From Other Governments
Total Assets

Liabilities

Accounts Payable

Deferred Revenue

Due To Other Funds

Due To Other Governments

Unapportioned Monies
Total Liabilities

The Notes to Financial Statements are an integral part of this statement.
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Agency

39,648,179
13,097,082

535,897,533
31,925
970,594
32,634,001

622,279,314

5,588

9,166
808,895
527,450,581
94,005,084

622,279,314




County of Summt, Chio
NOTES TO FI NANCI AL STATEMENTS
YEAR ENDED DECEMBER 31, 2004

1. DESCRI PTION OF COUNTY OF SUMM T and REPORTI NG ENTI TY

The County of Summit is a body politic and corporate established for the purpose of exercising the rights and
privileges conveyed to it by the Constitution and laws of the State of Chio (State). The County was forned
by an enabling act of the Chio State Legislature in 1840. The County operates under a council-executive form
of governnent, as provided by its charter, the only county in Chio operating under a Home Rule Charter. Per
the Charter, there are eleven elected County Council nenbers and a County Executive. The County Fiscal

Oficer is the chief fiscal officer. |In addition, there are four other elected adnministrative officials,
each of whomis independent as set forth in Chio Law. These officials are the Cerk of Courts, Engineer,
Prosecutor, and Sheriff. There are also eight Compn Pleas Court Judges, two Domestic Relations Court

Judges, one Juvenile Court Judge, and one Probate Court Judge.

A reporting entity is conprised of the prinmary governnent, conmponent unit and other organizations that are
included to ensure that the financial statements are not msleading. The primary government of the County
consi sts of funds, departnents, boards and agencies that are not |legally separate fromthe County. For the
County of Summit, this includes the Children Services Board (CSB), Board of Mental Retardation and
Devel opnental Disabilities (MRDD), Al cohol, Drug Addiction & Mental Health Services Board (ADAVHS), Job &
Fam |y Services (JFS), and all departnments and activities that are directly operated by the el ected County
Oficials.

Conmponent units are legally separate organi zations for which the County is financially accountable. The
County is financially accountable for an organization if the County appoints a voting nejority of the
conponent unit's board and either 1) the County's ability to inpose its will over the conponent unit, or 2)
the possibility that the conponent unit will provide a financial benefit or inpose a financial burden to the
County.

The conponent unit colum on the Statenent of Net Assets and Statenent of Activities identify the financial
data of the County's discretely presented conponent unit, Edwin Shaw Hospital. It is reported separately to
enphasi ze that it is legally separate fromthe County.

Edwi n Shaw Hospital is a discretely presented conponent unit in the County's financial statements. The
Hospital is a separate legal entity that provides health care, prinmarily on an inpatient basis, in the
specialty medical areas of physical nedicine and rehabilitation, chenical dependency treatnent and skilled
nur si ng. The Hospital is governed by its own board, the nmenbers of which are appointed by the County
Executive with the approval of County Council. |n addition, County Council must approve |levied taxes and the
i ssuance of debt. The component wunit is included in the County's reporting entity because of the
significance of its financial relationship with the County. Addi tional financial information for the
discretely presented conponent unit nay be obtained at the entity's adm nistrative offices: Dwayne L. Wods,
Jr., CFO, Edwi n Shaw Hospital, 1621 Flickinger Road, Akron, Chio, 44312-4495.

2. SUMVARY CF SI GNI FI CANT ACCOUNTI NG POLI Cl ES

(A) BASI S OF PRESENTATI ON

The financial statements of the County have been prepared in conformity with generally accepted accounting
principles (GAAP) as applied to governnental units. The Governnental Accounting Standards Board (GASB) is
the accepted standard-setting body for establishing governnental accounting and financial reporting
princi pl es. The County also applies Financial Accounting Standards Board (FASB) statenents and
interpretations issued on or after Novenber 30, 1989, to its governmental and business-type activities and to
its enterprise funds, provided they do not conflict with or contradict GASB pronouncenents. The nost
significant of the County's accounting policies are described bel ow

The County’s basic financial statenents consist of governnent-w de statenents, including a statenent of net
assets and a statement of activities, and fund financial statenents, which provide a nore detailed |evel of
financial infornation.

Gover nnent -wi de Fi nanci al Statenents:
The statenment of net assets and the statenent of activities display information about the County as a whol e.
These statenents include the financial activities of the primary government, except for fiduciary funds. The
activity of the internal service funds is elimnated to avoid “doubling up” revenues and expenses. The
statenments distinguish between those activities of the County that are governmental and those that are
consi dered busi ness-type activities.

The statenent of net assets presents the financial condition of the governnental and business-type activities
for the County at year-end. The statement of activities presents a conparison between direct expenses and
program revenues for each programor function of the County's governnental activities and for the business-
type activities of the County. Direct expenses are those that are specifically associated with a service,
program or departnent and therefore clearly identifiable to a particular function. Programrevenues include
charges paid by the recipient of the goods or services offered by the program grants and contributions that
are restricted to nmeeting the operational or capital requirements of a particular programand interest earned
on grants that is required to be used to support a particular program Revenues not classified as program
revenues are presented as general revenues of the County, with certain linited exceptions. The conparison of
direct expenses with programrevenues identifies the extent to which each business segment or governnental
function is self-financing or draws fromthe general revenues of the County.
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COUNTY OF SUW T, CH O
NOTES TO FI NANCI AL _STATEMENTS

2. SUMVARY OF SI GNI FI CANT ACCOUNTI NG POLI CI ES (Conti nued)

Fund Fi nanci al Statenents:
During the year, the County segregates transactions related to certain County functions or activities in
separate funds in order to aid financial managenent and to denponstrate |egal conpliance. Fund financial

statements are designed to present financial information of the County at this nore detailed level. The
focus of governmental and enterprise fund financial statements is on nmjor funds. Each major fund is
presented in a separate colum. Nonmgjor funds are aggregated and presented in a single colum. Internal

service funds are conbined and the totals are presented in a single colum on the face of the proprietary
fund statenments. Fiduciary funds are reported by type.

(B) FUND ACCOUNTI NG

The County uses funds to maintain its financial records during the year. A fund is defined as a fiscal and
accounting entity with a self-balancing set of accounts. There are three categories of funds: governnental,
proprietary and fiduciary.

Gover nnent al Funds:

Governnental funds are those through which npbst governnental functions of the County are financed.
Governnental fund reporting focuses on the sources, uses and bal ances of current financial resources.
Expendabl e assets are assigned to the various governnental funds according to the purposes for which they
must be used. Current liabilities are assigned to the fund fromwhich they will be paid. The difference
bet ween governmental fund assets and liabilities is reported as fund bal ance. The followi ng are the County’s
maj or governnental funds:

General - This fund accounts for the general operating revenues and expenditures of the County not recorded
el sewhere. The general fund bal ance is available to the County for any purpose provided it is expended or
transferred according to the general laws of Chio. The primary revenue sources are property taxes, sales and
use tax, charges for services, intergovernmental revenues and investment earnings.

Job & Family Services — This fund accounts for various Federal and State grants as well as transfers fromthe
General fund used to provide public assistance to general relief recipients, nedical assistance and certain
public social services.

Children Services Board - This fund accounts for countywi de property tax levy, state grants and
rei nbursenents used for County child care programs. State law restricts the expenditure of these resources to
prograns designed to aid children fromtroubled famlies. Mjor expenditures are for foster homes, energency
shelters, nedical costs, counseling and parental training.

Al cohol, Drug Addiction & Mental Health Services - This fund accounts for Federal and State grants that are
extended primarily to pay the costs of contracts with local nmental health agencies which provide services to
the public at large including mental health and al cohol and drug prograns.

Board of Mental Retardation - This fund accounts for a countyw de property tax levy, state grants and
rei mbursements used for care and services for the nentally handi capped and devel opnental | y di sabl ed.

Debt Service — This fund accounts for the accunul ation of resources for, and the paynent of, general |ong
termdebt principal, interest and related costs other than enterprise debt.

The other governnental funds of the County account for grants and other resources whose use is restricted to
a particul ar purpose.

Proprietary Funds:
Proprietary fund reporting focuses on the deternination of operating incone, changes in net assets, financial
position and cash flows. Proprietary funds are classified as either enterprise or internal service.

Enterprise Funds - These funds are used to account for operations that provide services, which are financed
primarily by user charges, or activities where periodic nmeasurement of incone is appropriate for capital
mai nt enance, public policy, managenent control or other purposes. These funds account for the provision of
wat er and sewer services to external users throughout the County. All activities necessary to provide such
services, including capital projects and debt financed by user charges, are accounted for in these funds.
Water Revenue and Sewer Revenue funds are reported as nmmjor funds of the County.

Internal Service Funds — Internal service funds account for the financing of services provided by one
department or agency to other departnents or agencies of the County on a cost-reinbursement basis. The
County’s internal service funds are: Ofice Services, Medical Self-Insurance, Workers' Conpensation and
Tel ephone Servi ces.

Fi duci ary Funds:

Fi duciary fund reporting focuses on net assets and changes in net assets. The fiduciary fund category is
split into four classifications: pension trust funds, investment trust funds, private-purpose trust funds and
agency funds. The County only maintains agency funds. Agency funds are custodial in nature (assets equal

liabilities) and do not involve neasurenent of results of operations. The County’s agency funds are
primarily established to account for the collection of various taxes, as well as other intergovernnental
resources that will be distributed to other taxing districts located within the County of Summt.

37



COUNTY OF SUW T, CH O
NOTES TO FI NANCI AL _STATEMENTS

2. SUMVARY OF SI GNI FI CANT ACCOUNTI NG POLI CI ES (Conti nued)

(© MEASUREMENT FOCUS

Gover nnent -wi de Fi nancial Statenents

The governnent-wi de financial statements are prepared using the econom c resources nmeasurenent focus. All
assets and all liabilities associated with the operation of the County are included on the Statement of Net
Asset s.

Fund Fi nanci al Statenents

Al'l governnental funds are accounted for using a flow of current financial resources nmeasurenent focus. Wth
thi s measurenent focus, only current assets and current liabilities generally are included on the bal ance
sheet. The statenent of revenues, expenditures and changes in fund bal ances reports on the sources (i.e.,
revenues and other financing sources) and uses (i.e., expenditures and other financing uses) of current
financial resources. This approach differs from the nmanner in which the governnental activities of the
government-wi de financial statenents are prepared. Governnental fund financial statenents, therefore,
include a reconciliation with brief explanations to better identify the relationship between the governnent-
wi de statenents and the statenents for governmental funds. Li ke the governnment-wi de statements, all
proprietary fund types are accounted for on a flow of econom c resources nmeasurenent focus. Al assets and
all liabilities associated with the operation of these funds are included on the statenent of net assets.
The statenent of changes in fund assets presents increases (i.e., revenues) and decreases (i.e., expenses) in
net total assets. The statenment of cash flows provides informati on about how the County finances and neets
the cash flow needs of its proprietary activities.

Agency funds do not report a neasurenent focus as they do not report operations.

(D) BASI S OF ACCOUNTI NG

Basi s of accounting determ nes when transactions are recorded in the financial records and reported on the
financial statenents. Governnent-w de financial statements, proprietary and fiduciary funds are prepared
using the accrual basis of accounting. Governnental funds use the nodified accrual basis of accounting.
Differences in the accrual and the nodified accrual basis of accounting arise in the recognition of revenue,
the recording of deferred revenue and in the presentation of expenses versus expenditures.

Revenues — Exchange and Nonexchange Transactions: Revenue resulting from exchange transactions, in which
each party gives and receives essentially equal value, is recorded on the accrual basis when the exchange
takes place. On a nodified accrual basis, revenue is recorded in the fiscal year in which the resources are
measur abl e and becone available. Available nmeans that the resources will be collected within the current
fiscal year or are expected to be collected soon enough thereafter to be used to pay liabilities of the
current fiscal year. The availability period used for the recognition of revenue is sixty days.

Nonexchange transactions, in which the County receives value w thout directly giving equal value in return,
include sales and use taxes, property taxes, grants, entitlenents and donations. On an accrual basis,
revenue fromsales taxes is recognized in the period in which the taxable sale takes place. Revenue from
property taxes is recognized in the fiscal year for which the taxes are levied. (See Note 7) Revenue from
grants, entitlenents and donations is recognized in the fiscal year in which all eligibility requirenents
have been satisfied. Eligibility requirenents include timng requirenments, which specify the year when the
resources are required to be used or the year when use is first permtted, matching requirenents, in which
the County must provide local resources to be used for a specified purpose, and expenditure requirenents, in
which the resources are provided to the County on a reinbursement basis. On a nodified accrual basis,
revenue from nonexchange transacti ons nust al so be avail able before it can be recogni zed.

Under the nodified accrual basis, the follow ng revenue sources are considered to be both measurable and
avail abl e at year-end: sales and use taxes (See Note 8), investnent incone, federal and state grants and
subsi dies, state-levied locally shared taxes (including notor vehicle license fees and gasoline taxes), fees
and rental s.

Deferred Revenue: Deferred revenue arises when assets are recogni zed before revenue recognition criteria
have been sati sfied.

Property taxes for which there is an enforceable |egal claimas of Decenber 31, 2004, but which were |evied
to finance year 2005 operations, have been recorded as deferred revenue. Gants and entitlements received
before the eligibility requirenents are net are al so recorded as deferred revenue.

On governnental fund financial statements, receivables that will not be collected within the avail abl e period
have al so been reported as deferred revenue.

Expenses/ Expendi tures: On the accrual basis of accounting, expenses are recognized at the tine they are
i ncurred.

The nmeasurement focus of governmental fund accounting is on decreases in net financial resources
(expendi tures) rather than expenses. Expenditures are generally recognized in the accounting period in which
the related fund liability is incurred, if neasurable. Al'l ocations of cost, such as depreciation and
anortization, are not recognized in governnental funds.
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(E) BUDGETARY DATA

The budgetary process is prescribed by provisions of the Onio Revised Code and entails the preparation of
budget ary docunents wi thin an established timetable. The major docunents prepared are the tax budget, the
certificate of estimated resources and the appropriations resolution, all of which are prepared on the
budgetary basis of accounting. The certificate of estinmated resources and the appropriations resolution are
subject to anmendnent throughout the year with the legal restriction that appropriations cannot exceed
estimated resources, as certified. Al funds, other than certain special revenue funds (operating on a
different fiscal year), capital project funds and agency funds, are required by law to be budgeted and
appropriated. The |legal |evel of budgetary control is at the object |level within each departnent. Al though
statutory law requires that all funds be budgeted, it is not necessary to do so if the County Budget
Commi ssi on does not anticipate any cash activity for certain funds. Therefore, these funds are not included
in the budgetary presentation. Budgetary nodifications nmay only be nade by resolution of the Budget
Conmi ssi on.

TAX BUDGET
A budget of estimated revenues and expenditures is subnitted to the County of Summt Fiscal O ficer, by July
20 of each year, for the period January 1 to Decenber 31 of the followi ng year.

ESTI MATED RESOURCES

The County Budget Commi ssion reviews estinmated revenues and determnes if the budget substantiates a need to
levy all or part of previously authorized taxes. The Commission certifies its actions to the County by
Septenber 1. As part of this certification, the County receives the official certificate of estinated
resources, which states the projected revenue of each fund. Prior to Decenber 31, the County must revise its
budget so that the total contenplated expenditures fromany fund during the ensuing fiscal year will not
exceed the anpunt available as stated in the certificate of estimted resources. The revised budget then
serves as the basis for the annual appropriation measure. On or about January 1, the certificate is amended
to include any unencunbered cash bal ances fromthe preceding year. The certificate nay be anmended further
during the year if the County of Summit Fiscal Oficer determnes, and the Budget Conmi ssion agrees, that an
estimate needs to be increased or decreased.

The anmpunts reported as the original budgeted amounts in the budgetary statenments reflect the anobunts in the
amended certificate when the original appropriations were adopted. The ampunts reported as the final
budget ed ampbunts in the budgetary statements reflect the anpunts in the final anended certificate issued
during 2004.

APPROPRI ATl ONS

A tenporary resolution to control expenditures nay be passed on or around January 1 of each year for the
period January 1 to March 31. An annual appropriation resolution nust be passed by April 1 of each year for
the period January 1 to Decenber 31. Each County department, in conjunction with the Ofice of Finance &
Budget, prepares a budget that is approved by County Council. Throughout the year nodifications and
amendnents to the original budget nust be processed by the O fice of Finance & Budget and approved through
legal resolution by County Council. Each revised budget includes all nodifications and suppl enental
appropriations that were necessary during the year. The County nmintains budgetary control by fund,
function, organizational unit, and object class and does not permt expenditures/expenses and encunbrances to
exceed appropriations.

LAPSI NG OF APPROPRI ATI ONS

At the close of each year, unencunbered and unexpended appropriations in annually budgeted funds revert to
the respective fund from which they were appropriated. As required by State law, the Delinquent Tax
Assessnent Coll ection fund nust rollover the unexpended appropriations at the end of the year.

(F) DEPOSI TS AND | NVESTMENTS

To inmprove cash nmnagenent, cash received by the County is pool ed. Monies for all funds, including
proprietary funds, are maintained in this pool. Individual fund integrity is maintained through the County’'s
records. Each fund' s interest in the pool is presented as “Equity in Pooled Cash and | nvestnents” on the
financial statements. The County has segregated bank accounts for nonies held separate fromthe County’s
central bank account. These nonies are presented in the financial statenents as “Cash and |nvestnents-
Segregat ed Accounts” since they are not required to be deposited into the County treasury.

During 2004, investments were limted to Federal Home Loan Bank Bonds, Federal Hone Loan Mrtgage Bonds,
Government Treasury Certificates, Repurchase Agreenents, Mpney Market Funds and STAROhi o.

The County has the ability and the intent to hold all investments to maturity. County policy requires
interest earned on investnments to be credited to the General Fund except where there is a |l egal requirenent
that the interest inconme follow the principal. Any increase or decrease in fair value is reported as a

conponent of interest income.

The County has invested in the State Treasury Assets Reserve of Chio (STARChio) during 2004. STARChi o, which
is an investnent pool nanaged by the State Treasurer’s Ofice, which allows governnents within the State to
pool their funds for investnent purposes. STARChio is not registered with the SEC as an investnment conpany,
but does operate in a nanner that is consistent with Rule 2a7 of the I|nvestnent Conpany Act of 1940.
Investments in STARChio are val ued at STARChi 0’s share price, which is the price the investnment could be sold
for on Decenber 31, 2004.

39



COUNTY OF SUW T, CH O
NOTES TO FI NANCI AL _STATEMENTS

2. SUMVARY OF SI GNI FI CANT ACCOUNTI NG POLI CI ES (Conti nued)

Cash and Cash Equival ents include all liquid deposits and investnents with maturity of three nonths or I|ess
when deposited or purchased.

(G MATERI AL AND SUPPLI ES | NVENTORI ES
On government-w de financial statements, inventories are presented at the |ower of cost or market on a first-
in, first-out basis and are expensed when used.

On fund financial statements, inventories of governnental funds are stated at cost while inventories of
proprietary funds are stated at the | ower of cost or narket. For all funds, cost is determned on a first-in,
first-out basis. The cost of inventory items is recorded as expenditures in the governnental fund types when
purchased. Inventories of the enterprise fund are expensed when used.

(H PREPAID | TEMS

Paynments made to vendors for services that will benefit periods beyond Decenber 31, 2004, are recorded as
prepaid itens using the allocation method by recording a current asset for the prepaid amount and reflecting
the expenditure in the year in which services are consuned.

(1) CAPITAL ASSETS AND DEPRECI ATI ON

Capital assets, including property, plant, equipnent and infrastructure assets, are those assets, which are
associated with and generally arise from governnental activities. Capital assets generally result from
expendi tures in the governmental funds. Capital assets are reported in the governmental activities colum of
the governnent-w de statenent of net assets but are not reported in the fund financial statenents, except for
internal service funds, which are reported in both. Capital assets utilized by the enterprise fund are
reported both in the business-type activities colum of the governnent-w de statenent of net assets and in
the fund financial statenents.

In the case of the initial capitalization of general infrastructure assets, associated with governnental
activities, the county chose to include all such itens regardl ess of their acquisition date or ambunt. The
county was able to estimate the historical cost for the initial reporting of these assets by estimating the
current replacenment cost of the infrastructure to be capitalized and using a price index to adjust the cost
to the acquisition or estimated acquisition year. Capital assets, including infrastructure, are capitalized
at cost (or estimated historical cost). Donated capital assets are recorded at estinmated fair narket val ue
at the date of donation. Capital assets are defined as assets with an individual cost of $5,6000 and an

estimated useful life in excess of one year. The County’s infrastructure consists of roads, bridges,
culverts and simlar items. |nmprovenents are capitalized, while the costs of normal maintenance and repairs
that do not add to the value of the asset or materially extend an asset’s life are not. Interest incurred

during the construction of capital assets utilized by the enterprise fund is also capitalized. The total
interest expense incurred by the County during the current fiscal year was $9, 161,955. O that, $4, 264,823
and $4, 897,132 represent governmental activity and proprietary activity, respectively.

Al capital assets are depreciated except for land and construction in progress. | nprovenents are
depreci ated over the useful lives of the related capital assets. Useful lives for infrastructure were
estimated based on the County’s historical records of necessary inproverments and repl acement. Depreciation
is conputed using the straight-line nethod over the follow ng estimted useful |ives:
Governnental Activities- Estimated Lives

Land I nprovenents 15 years

Bui | di ngs and Buil ding | mprovenents 40 years

Machi nery and Equi pnent 3-7 years

I nt angi bl es 3 years

Infrastructure 20-50 years
Busi ness- Type Activities- Estimated Lives

Bui | di ngs and Buil ding | mprovenents 35 years

Machi nery and Equi pnent 15 years

Pump Stations 25 years

Treat ment Pl ants 25 years

Wat er Towers 50 years

Sewer /WAt er Lines 75 years

(J) | NTERFUND BALANCES

On fund financial statements, receivables and payables resulting from short-term interfund |loans are
classified as “Due To/ From Gt her Funds”. These anounts are elinminated in the governmental and business-type
activities colums of the statenent of net assets, except for any net residual ampbunts due between
governmental and busi ness-type activities, which are presented as internal bal ances.

(K) COVPENSATED ABSENCES

The liability for conpensated absences is based on the provisions of GASB Statement No. 16, “Accounting for
Conpensat ed Absences” as interpreted by Interpretation No.6 of the GASB, “Recognition and Measurenent of
Certain Liabilities and Expenditures in Governnental Fund Financial Statenents”. Vacation benefits are
accrued as a liability as the benefits are earned if the enployees’ rights to receive conpensation are
attributable to services already rendered and it is probable that the County will conpensate the enpl oyees
for the benefits through paid tine off or some other neans. Sick |eave benefits are accrued as a liability
using the vesting nethod. An accrual for earned sick leave is made to the extent that it is probable that
the benefits will result in termnation paynents. The liability is based on the County's past experience of
maki ng term nati on paynents.
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The entire conpensated absence liability is recorded on the government-w de financial statenents. For
governnental funds, the County records a liability for accumul ated, unused, vacation time when earned for all
enpl oyees with nore than one year of service. The County records a liability for accumul ated, unused, sick
|l eave for eligible enployees in the period in which the enpl oyee beconmes eligible to receive paynent. The
current portion of unpaid conpensated absences is the expected anpunt to be paid using expendabl e avail abl e
resources. These anpunts are recorded in the account “conpensated absences payable” in the fund from which
t he enpl oyees who have accunul ated | eave are paid. The non-current portion of the liability is not reported.
In the proprietary funds, conpensated absences are expensed when earned. The entire anount of conpensated
absences is reported as a fund liability.

(L) ACCRUED LI ABILITIES AND LONG TERM OBLI GATI ONS

County payabl es, accrued liabilities and long-termobligations are reported in the governnent-w de fi nanci al
statenments, and all payables, accrued liabilities and |ong-termobligations payable fromproprietary funds
are reported in the proprietary fund financial statenents.

In general, governnmental fund payables and accrued liabilities, once incurred, are paid in a tinely manner
and in full fromcurrent financial resources and are reported as obligations of the funds. However, clains
and judgnents, conpensated absences, special termnation benefits and contractually required pension
contributions that will be paid fromgovernnental funds are reported as a liability in the fund financi al
statenents only to the extent that they are due for payment during the current year. Bonds, capital |eases
and long-term |l oans are recognized as a liability in the governmental fund financial statenments when due.

(M FUND BALANCE RESERVES

Reserved fund bal ances indicate that a portion of fund equity is not available for current appropriation or
use or is legally segregated for a specific future use. Fund bal ance reserves have been established for
encunbrances, prepaid itens, material & supplies and | oans. The unreserved portions of fund equity reflected
for the governnental funds are available for use within the specific purposes of the funds.

(N) NET ASSETS

Net Assets represent the difference between assets and liabilities. Net assets invested in capital assets,
net of related debt, consists of capital assets, net of accunul ated depreciation, reduced by the outstandi ng
bal ances of any borrowi ng used for the acquisition, construction or inprovenent of those assets. Net assets
are reported as restricted when there are limtations inposed on their use either through the enabling
| egi slati on adopted by the County or through external restrictions inposed by creditors, grantors or laws or
regul ati ons of other governnents.

(O OPERATI NG REVENUES AND EXPENSES

Operating revenues are those revenues that are generated directly from the primary activity of the
proprietary funds. Operating expenses are necessary costs incurred to provide the good or service that is
the primary activity of the fund. Al revenues and expenditures not neeting these definitions are classified
as Nonoperating.

(P) CONTRI BUTI ONS OF CAPI TAL

Contributions of capital in the proprietary fund financial statenents arise from outside contributions of
capital assets, tap-in fees to the extent they exceed the cost of the connection to the system or from
grants or outside contributions of resources restricted to capital acquisition and construction.

(Q | NTERFUND ACTIVITY

During the normal course of operations, the County has nunerous transactions between funds. These
transactions include charges for services provided by one fund to other funds and transfers, which represent
transfers of resources from a fund receiving revenue to a fund through which those resources wll be

expended. Transfers are recorded as other financing sources (uses) in governnental funds and transfers in
(out) in the proprietary funds.

(R ESTI MATES

The preparation of the basic financial statements in conformity with generally accepted accounting principles
requires nanagenent to make estinmates and assunptions that affect the reported amounts of assets and
liabilities and disclosure of contingent assets and liabilities at the date of the financial statenents.
Actual results may differ fromthose estimates.

(S) GRANTS AND OTHER | NTERGOVERNMVENTAL REVENUES

Local Government fund revenues are recorded as receivables and revenues when neasurable and avail abl e.
Assi stance awards made on the basis of entitlement are recorded as intergovernnental receivables and revenues
when entitlement occurs. Federal and State reinbursenent type grants for the acquisition or construction of
capital assets are recorded as receivables and contributed capital when the rel ated expenses are incurred.
Al other Federal and State type grants are recorded as receivables and revenues when the related
expendi t ur e